CITY OF PETAL 603
MINUTE BOOK 36

BE IT REMEMBERED THAT THERE WAS BEGUN AND HELD A REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND
BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI ON JULY 17, 2018 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE
BOARDROOM OF SAID CITY.

THOSE PRESENT MAYOR HAL MARX
ATTORNEY ROCKY EATON
ALDERMEN BRAD AMACKER

CRAIG BULLOCK
DAVID CLAYTON
TONY DUCKER
WILLIAM KING
CLINT MOORE
STEVE STRINGER

OTHERS ADA MADISON
TOMMYE CORLEY
AND MANY OTHERS
MAYOR MARX DECLARED A QUORUM PRESENT AND DECLARED THE CITY COUNCIL IN SESSION.
THE INVOCATION WAS OFFERED BY TONY DUCKER
THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE WAS RECITED.
WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE AGENDA WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS

GENERAL BUSINESS

REQUEST TO ACCEPT THE RESIGNATION OF DANIEL KNOTTS EFFECTIVE JULY 16, 2018.
REQUEST TO ACCEPT ADDENDUM TO STREET STRIPING QUOTE AT A COST OF $21,750.00.

ORDERS & ORDINANCES

REQUEST TO ADOPT ORDER HIRING JAMES CODY NORRIS FULL TIME IN THE WATER DEPT AT A RATE OF
$10.50 PER HOUR PENDING DRUG SCREEN/BACKGROUND CHECK

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN KING MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE AGENDA WITH THE FOREGOING
AMENDMENTS. ALDERMAN STRINGER SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED A REQUEST TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF JULY 5, 2018.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN KING MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF
JULY 35,2018 AS WRITTEN. ALDERMAN AMACKER SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX CALLED FOR PUBLIC COMMENT

THEREUPON, DANIEL SMITHSON ADDRESSED THE BOARD REQUESTING THAT A DITCH THAT RUNS
THROUGH HIS PROPERTY ON CASSIL STREET BE MOVED. HE DOESN’T KNOW HOW LONG THE DITCH HAS
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BEEN THERE BUT HE DOES KNOW THAT IMPROVEMENTS WERE MADE AROUND NOVEMBER. MAYOR MARX
ADVISED THAT THE CITY CANNOT RELOCATE THE DITCH. EASEMENTS WERE IN PLACE WHEN HE
PURCHASED THE PROPERTY. HE ALSO ADVISED THAT MR. SMITHSON NOT BUILD A FENCE IN THE
EASEMENT IN CASE THE CITY EVER HAD TO GET THROUGH BECAUSE THE FENCE WOULD BE TORN DOWN.

THEREUPON, CAROLYN JORDAN ADDRESSED THE BOARD REGARDING THE DITCH ON SHORT SOUTH
STREET. MS. JORDAN FEELS LIKE THE CITY SHOULD DO MORE TO MAINTAIN THE DITCH. SHE WOULD LIKE
TO HAVE A CULVERT PUT IN AND THE DITCH FILLED UP LIKE IT IS ON THE OTHER END OF THE STREET.
MAYOR MARX ADVISED THAT COVERING THE DITCH AND INSTALLING A CULVERT WAS A LARGE PROJECT
THAT THE CITY HAD NO PLANS OF TAKING ON AT THIS TIME. THE STREET DEPT WILL COME BY TO SEE
WHAT CAN BE DONE TO CLEAN THE DITCH UP A LITTLE AND BETTER MAINTAIN IT.

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC HEARING OF
7/17/18 AT 5:30 P.M.

EXHIBIT “A”
RESOLUTIONS

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN AMACKER MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE FOREGOING RESOLUTIONS.
ALDERMAN MOORE SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING PROCLAMATION HONORING TOM HARDGES FOR HIS
SERVICE AS DIRECTOR OF PARKS & RECREATION

EXHIBIT “B”
PROCLAMATION

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN STRINGER MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE FOREGOING PROCLAMATION.
ALDERMAN KING SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY™
NONE

THEREUPON, MAYOR MARX INVITED THE PUBLIC TO ATTEND A SMALL RECEPTION AFTER THE MEETING IN
HONOR OF TOM HARDGES.

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX CALLED ON NADINE COLEMAN TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

THEREUPON, MRS. COLEMAN ADDRESSED THE BOARD WITH APPRECIATION FOR THEIR SUPPORT OF EXCEL
BY 5.

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED A REQUEST TO SET A HEARING DATE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT
200 W 6™ AVE

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN STRINGER MADE A MOTION TO SET A HEARING DATE OF AUGUST 14, 2018 AT 6:00
P.M. FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 200 W 6™ AVE. ALDERMAN AMACKER SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER

ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK

ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
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ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER
THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE RESIGNATION OF MIKE TREST FROM THE POLICE DEPARTMENT

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN MOORE ACCEPTED THE RESIGNATION OF MIKE TREST FROM THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT EFFECTIVE JULY 6, 2018. ALDEMRAN KING SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING PROOFS OF PUBLICATION
e RESOLUTION - AMENDING FY2018 BUDGET

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN KING MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE PROOF OF PUBLICATION FOR FILING.
ALDERMAN AMACKER SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE 2018 CONTINUING DISCLOSURE SUBMISSION.
EXHBIT “C”
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE SUBMISSION

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN KING MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE 2018 CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
SUBMISSION AND TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY CLERK TO PAY BUTLER SNOW INVOICE IN THE AMOUNT OF
$3,000.00. ALDERMAN MOORE SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE REVENUE & EXPENDITURES REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF JUNE
2018

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN AMACKER MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE REVENUE & EXPENDITURES REPORT
FOR THE MONTH OF JUNE 2018. ALDERMAN KING SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER

ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK

ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
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ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY™
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE FY2017 FINANCIAL AUDIT
EXHIBIT “D”
2017 FINANCIAL AUDIT

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN KING MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE FY2017 FINANCIAL AUDIT. ALDERMAN
MOORE SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED A REQUEST FOR ADJUSTMENT TO WATER SERVICES BILLED TO 1122
EVELYN GANDY PARKWAY

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN STRINGER NOTED EVIDENCE OF A REPAIRED LEAK AND MADE A MOTION TO
AUTHORIZE THE CITY CLERK TO ADJUST WATER SERVICES BILLED TO 1122 EVELYN GANDY PARKWAY IN
THE AMOUNT OF $416.00 + SALES TAX CHARGED. ALDERMAN MOORE SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY™
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED A REQUEST TO ADJUST WATER SERVICES BILLED TO 102 THOMPSON
BLVD.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN STRINGER NOTED EVIDENCE OF A REPAIRED LEAK AND MADE A MOTION TO
AUTHORIZE THE CITY CLERK TO ADJUST WATER SERVICES BILLED TO 102 THOMPSON BLVD IN THE
AMOUNT OF $668.40. ALDERMAN KING SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”
ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON

ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER
THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY™
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE PRIVILEGE LICENSE REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF JUNE 2018

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN AMACKER MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE PRIVILEGE LICENSE REPORT FOR THE
MONTH OF JUNE 2018. ALDERMAN STRINGER SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
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ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE

ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE RESIGNATION OF DANIEL KNOTTS IN THE FIRE DEPT

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN KING MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE RESIGNATION OF DANIEL KNOTTS IN THE
FIRE DEPT EFFECTIVE JULY 16, 2018. ALDERMAN STRINGER SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED AN ADDENDUM TO THE STREET STRIPING QUOTE

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN AMACKER MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE ADDENDUM TO THE STREET
STRIPING QUOTE AT A COST OF $21,750.00. ALDERMAN KING SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED A REQUEST FOR JEREMIAH HILL TO ATTEND MS COMMUNITY RISK
REDUCTION SUMMIT AT THE STATE FIRE ACADEMY ON JULY 18, 2018

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN STRINGER MADE A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE JEREMIAH HILL TO ATTEND MS
COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION SUMMIT AT THE STATE FIRE ACADEMY ON JULY 18, 2018 AT NO COST.
ALDERMAN AMACKER SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED A REQUEST FOR CODY PITTS TO ATTEND K-9 HANDLER TRAINING

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN KING MADE A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE CODY PITTS TO ATTEND K-9 HANDLER
TRAINING AT A COST OF $2,000.00. ALDERMAN CLAYTON SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER

ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK

ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
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ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER
THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY™
NONE

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING ORDER APPOINTING BRIAN HALL AS RECREATION
DIRECTOR

ORDER

WHEREAS THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN
OF THE CITY OF PETAL DEEM IT NECESSARY TO
APPOINT A NEW DIRECTOR OF PARKS & RECREATION

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT BRIAN HALL BE
APPOINTED AS DIRECTOR OF PARKS & RECREATION
AT A SALARY OF $47,215.00 ANNUALLY
EFFECTIVE AUGUST 29, 2018

SO ORDERED THIS THE 17™ DAY OF JULY 2018

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN KING MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE FOREGOING ORDER. ALDERMAN BULLOCK
SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED THE FOLLOWING ORDER HIRING JAMES CODY NORRIS IN THE WATER
DEPT

ORDER

WHEREAS THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN
OF THE CITY OF PETAL DEEM IT NECESSARY TO
HIRE A LABORER IN THE WATER DEPT

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT JAMES CODY NORRIS
BE HIRED FULL TIME IN THE WATER DEPT AT A
RATE OF $10.50 PER HOUR EFFECTIVE JULY 27,2018

SO ORDERED THIS THE 17™ DAY OF JULY 2018

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN AMACKER MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE FOREGOING ORDER. ALDERMAN
MOORE SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY™
NONE
WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX CALLED FOR FURTHER PUBLIC COMMENT
THEREUPON, DEREK HALL ADDRESSED THE BOARD. MR. HALL REPORTED THAT PETAL SPORTS
ASSOCIATION HOSTED REGIONAL TOURNAMENTS THIS PAST WEEKEND AND HAD A GOOD TURNOUT. HE
WILL COME BACK TO UPDATE THE BOARD ON OTHER SPORTS COMING UP.

THEREUPON, VALERIE WILSON ADDRESSED THE BOARD. MRS. WILSON THANKED THE CITY DEPARTMENTS
FOR THEIR ASSISTANCE WITH THE FIREWORKS ON THE RIVER EVENT. THERE WAS A VERY GOOD TURNOUT.



CITY OF PETAL 609
MINUTE BOOK 36

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED A REQUEST FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN STRINGER MADE A MOTION TO CLEAR THE ROOM TO SEE THE NEED FOR
EXECUTIVE SESSION. ALDERMAN CLAYTON SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN STRINGER MADE A MOTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION. ALDERMAN
CLATYON SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN STRINGER MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. ALDERMAN
KING SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE

NO OFFICIAL ACTION WAS TAKEN IN EXECUTIVE SESSION,

WHEREAS, MAYOR MARX PRESENTED A REQUEST FOR DISCIPLINARY ACTION FOR CLARK MOORE AT THE
SENIOR CENTER.

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN BULLOCK MADE A MOTION TO SUSPEND CLARK MOORE WITHOUT PAY FOR
THREE (3) DAYS AND TO REQUIRE A NEW JOB DESCRIPTION THAT WILL NEED TO BE SIGNED BY CLARK’S
DOCTOR. ALDERMAN MOORE SECONDED THE MOTION

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE

THEREUPON, ALDERMAN AMACKER MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN THE REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 17,
2018. ALDERMAN MOORE SECONDED THE MOTION.

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING *AYE”

ALDERMAN BRAD AMACKER
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ALDERMAN CRAIG BULLOCK
ALDERMAN DAVID CLAYTON
ALDERMAN TONY DUCKER
ALDERMAN WILLIAM KING
ALDERMAN CLINT MOORE
ALDERMAN STEVE STRINGER

THOSE PRESENT AND VOTING “NAY”
NONE
THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS, THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN

QF-*T_I[-I-}IE C[TY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI WAS ADJOURNED. :

w MAYQE HAL MARX
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Exhibit “A”

RESOLUTION RESOLUTION
Resolution finding and determining that the property Resolution finding and determining that the property
located at 123 Byrd Ave in Petal, Mississippi and owned by located on Pine St in Petal, Mississippi and owned by

Brenda Clark, is in such a state of uncleanness as to be

Peter Blackwell, is in such a state of uncleanness and disrepair
a menace to the public hezlth and safery of the community

as to be a menace to the public health and safety of the community
WHEREAS, due and proper notice has been given to the owners of the property localed at 123 Byrd Ave,, Parcel# WHEREAS, due and proper notice has been given to the owners of the property located on Pine St., Parcel# 3-

3-030H-01-194.00 in Petal, Mississippi ol a hearing conducted before the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City of Petal 030C-02-068.00 and 3-030C-02-069,00 in Petal, Mississippi of a hearing conducted before the Mayor and Board of

1o determine that said property needs to be cleaned Aldermen of the City of Petal to determine that said property needs to be cleaned

WHEREAS, said hearing having been duly and propetly held and evidence having been presented, all in ‘WHEREAS, said hearing having been duly and properly held and evidence having been presented, all in

rmance with Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended, conformance with Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED; NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED;
SECTION | SECTION 1.

That the property located at 123 Byrd Ave., Parcel # 3-030H-01-194,00, in Petal, Mississippi is in such a state of That the property located on Pine St Parcel# 3-030C-02-068.00 and 3-030C-02-069.00, in Petal, Mississippi is in

uncleanness and disrepair as to be a menace (o the public health and safety of the community, and such a state of uncleanness as to be a menace to the public health and safety of the community, and

SECTION 2, SECTION 2

That if the owner of said property has not brought the property up to code within ten (10) days, the City of Petal That if the owner of said property has not brought the property up to code within ten (10) days, the City of Petal

shall, by the use of Municipal Employees or by Contract, proceed to clean the property by exercising its rights under the shall, by the use of Municipal Employees or by Contract, proceed to clean the property by exercising its rights under the

“Cleaning of Private Property” section of the Mississippi code 21-19-11. “Cleaning ol Private Property” section of the Mississippi code 21-19-11.

SECTION 3 SECTION 3,

That all cost incurred by the Municipality, if any, plus penalty, if any, shall become as assessment against said That all cost incurred by the Municipality, if any, plus penalty, if any, shall become as assessment against said

property. all authorized and permitted pursuant to Section 29-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended. property, all authorized and permitted pursuant to Section 29-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended.

SO, RESOLVED, on this the 17" day of July, 2018 A.D. SO, RESOLVED, on this the 17" day of July, 2018 A.D.

N

(SEAL) {SEAL)

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Melissa Martin, City Clerk Melissa Martin, City Clerk

RESOLUTION RESOLUTION
Resolution finding and determining that the property
located at 310 Ford Dr in Petal, Mississippi and owned by
Kacey Hitson, is in such a state of uncleanness and disrepair
as 1o be a menace to the public health and safety of the community

Resolution finding and determining that the property
tocated at 929 Hwy 42 in Petal, Mississippi and
owned by Alfred & Delores Brown, is in such a state of uncleanness
8s to be a menace to the public health and safety of the commumity

WHEREAS, due and proper notice has been given to the owners of the property located at 929 Hwy 42,, Parcel# 3- WHEREAS, due and proper notice has been given to the owners of the property located at 310 Ford Dr.. Parcel# 3-

0210-32-002.00 in Petal, Mississippi of a hearing conducted before the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City of Petal to 030B-01-158.00 in Petal, Mississippi of a hearing conducted before the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City of Petal (o

determine that said property needs to be cleaned determine that said property needs to be cleaned

'WHEREAS, said hearing having been duly and properly held and evidence having been presented, all in WHEREAS, said hearing having been duly and properly held and evidence having been presented, all in

conformance with Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended, conformance with Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED; NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED;

SECTION 1 SECTION 1

That the property located at 929 Hwy 42, Parcel # 3-0210-32-002,00, in Petal, Mississippi is in such a state of That the praperty located at 310 Ford Dr., Parcel # 3-030B-01-158 00, in Petal, Mississippi is in such a state of

uncleanness and disrepair as to be a menace to the public health and safety of the community, and uncieanness and disrepair as (o be a menace to the public health and safety of the community, and

SECTION 2 SECTION 2.

That if the owner of said property has not brought the property up (o code within thirty (30) days, the City of Petal That if the owner of said property has not brought the property up to code within ten (10) days. the City of Petal

shall, by the use of Municipal Employees or by Contract, proceed to clean the property by exercising its ights under the shall, by the use of Municipal Employees or by Contract, proceed to clean the property by exercising its rights under the

“ng of Private Property™ section of the Mississippi code 21-19-11 “Cleaning of Private Property” section of the Mississippi code 21-19-11

SECTION 3 SECTION 3.

‘That all cost incurred by the Municipality, if any, plus penalty, if any, shall become as assessment against said That all cost incurred by the Municipality, if any, plus penaity, if eny, shall become as assessment against said

property, all authorized and permitted pursuant to Section 29-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended property, all authorized and permitted pursuant to Section 29-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended

SO. RESOLVED, on this the 17" day of July, 2018 A.D.

Il e

(SEAL) (SEAL)

SO RESOLVED, on this the 17" day of July, 2018 A D,

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Melissa Martin, City Clerk Melissa Martin, City Clerk
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RESOLUTION
Resolution finding and determining that the property
located at 114 E 2™ Ave in Petal, Mississippi and owned
by Gregory & Amanda Ballard, is in such a state of uncleanness
as to be a menace to the public health and safety of the community

WHEREAS, due and proper notice has been given to the owners of the property located at 114 E 2™ Ave,, Parcel#
3-0220-36-089.00 in Petal, Mississippi of a hearing conducted before the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City of Petal
to determine that said property needs to be cleaned.

‘WHEREAS, said hearing having been duly and properly held and evidence having been presented, all in
conformance with Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code ol 1972 as amended,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED;

SECTION |

That the property located 114 E 2™ Ave., Parcel¥ 3-0220-36-089.00, in Petal, Mississippi is in such a state of
uncleanness as to be a menace to the public health and safety of the community, and

SECTION 2.

‘That if the owner of said property has not brought the property up to code within ten (10) days, the City of Petal
shall, by the use of Municipal Employees or by Contract, proceed to clean the property by exercising its Aghts under the
“Cleaning of Private Property” section of the Mississippi code 21-19-11,

SECTION 3

That all cost incurred by the Municipality, if any, plus penalty, if any, shall become as assessment against said
property, all authorized and permitted pursuant to Section 29-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended,

SO, RESOLVED, on this the 17" day of July, 2018 A.D,

é " Hal %z. Mayor.

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Melissa Martin, City Clerk

RESOLUTION
Resolution finding and determining that the property
Tocated at 1429 Carterville Rd in Petal, Mississippi and owned
by Seaton Hixson, is in such a state of uncleanness and disrepair
as to be a menace to the public health and safety of the community

WHEREAS, due and proper notice has been given to the owners of the property located at 1429 Carterville Rd.,
Parcel# 3-036D-18-011.00 in Petal, Mississippi of a hearing conducted before the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City
of Petal to determine that said property needs to be cleaned

WHEREAS, said hearing having been duly and properly held and evidence having been presented, all in
conformance with Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED;

SECTION |

That the property located 1429 Carterville Rd,, Parcel¥ 3-036D-18-011.00, in Petal, Mississippi is in such a state of
unclearness and disrepair as to be 2 menace to the public health and safety of the community, and

SECTION 2

That if the owner of said property has not brought the property up to code within ten (10) days, the City of Petal
shall, by the use ol Municipal Employees or by Contract, proceed to clean the property by exercising its rights under the
“Cleaning of Private Property” section of the Mississippi code 21-19-11.

SECTION 3

That all cost incurred by the Municipality, if any, plus penalty, if any, shall become as assessment against said
property, all authorized and permitted pursuant to Section 29-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended

S0, RESOLVED, on this the 17" day of July, 2018 A.D.
B o Hal ﬁ Mayor
(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Melissa Martin, City Clerk

Exhibit “A”

RESOLUTION
Resolution finding and determining that the property
located on Pine St in Petal, Mississippi and owned
by State of MS, is in such a state of uncleanness
as to be a menace to the public health and safety of the community

‘WHEREAS, due and proper notice has been given to the owners of the property located on Pine St., Parcel# 3-
030C-02-054.00 in Petal, Mississippi of a hearing conducted before the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City of Petal to
determine that said property needs to be cleaned

‘WHEREAS, said hearing having been duly and properly held and evidence having been presented, all in
conformance with Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED;

SECTION 1

That the property located on Pine St, Parcel# 3-030C-02-054.00, in Petal, Mississippi is in such a stale of
uncleanness as 1o be a menace to the public health and safety of the community, and

SECTION 2

That if the owner of said property has not brought the property up to code within ten (10) days, the City of Petal
shall, by the use of Municipal Employees or by Contract, proceed to clean the property by exercising its rights under the
**Cleaning of Privale Property” section of the Mississippi code 21-19-11

SECTION 3.

That all cost incurred by the Municipality, if any, plus penalty, if any, shall become as assessment against said
property, all authorized and permitted pursuant to Section 29-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended.

SO, RESOLVED, on this the 17" day of July, 2018 A D

=

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Melissa Martin, City Clerk

RESOLUTION
Resolution finding and determining that the property
located at 111 Woodside Dr in Petal, Mississippi and owned
by Rafael Elias, is in such a state of uncleanness
a5 to be a menace (o the public health and safety of the community

WHEREAS, due and proper notice has been given to the awners of the property located at 111 Woodside Dr.,
Parcel# 3-022K-35-142.00 in Petal, Mississippi of a hearing conducted before the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City
of Petal to determine thal said property needs to be cleaned.

WHEREAS, said hearing having been duly and properly held and evidence having been presented, all in
conformance with Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED;

SECTION 1,

That the property located 111 Woodside Dr., Parcel# 3-022K-35-142.00, in Petal, Mississippi is in such a state of
uncleanness as to be a menace to the public health and safety of the community, and

SECTION 2

Thal if the owner of said property has not brought the property up to code within ten (10) days, the City of Petal
shall, by the use of Municipal Employees or by Contract, proceed to clean the property by exercising its rights under the
*Cleaning of Private Property" section of the Mississippi code 21-19-11

SECTION 3

That all cost incurred by the Municipality, if any, plus penalty, if any, shall become as assessment agains! said
property, all authorized and permitied pursuant to Section 29-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended

SO, RESOLVED, on this the 17* day of July, 2018 A D,
T é"'_ Hal %rx, Mayor
(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Me]Tssa-NisEn._Cﬁy Clerk
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RESOLUTION
Resolution finding and determining that the property
located at 101 Woodside Dr in Petal, Mississippi and owned
by Andrew Moore, is in such a state of uncleanness
as to be a menace to the public health and safety of the cormunity

'WHEREAS, due and proper notice has been given to the owners of the property located at 101 Woodside Dr.,
Parcel# 3-022K-35-147.00 in Petal, Mississippi of a hearing conducted before the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City
of Petal to determine that said property needs to be cleaned.

WHEREAS, said hearing having been duly and properly held and evidence having been presented, all in
conformance with Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended,

'NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED;

SECTION 1

That the property located at 101 Woodside Dr, Parcel# 3-022K-35-147.00, in Petal, Mississippi is in such a state of
uncleanness as to be a menace to the public health and safety of the community, and

SECTION 2.

That if the owner of said property has not brought the property up to code within ten (10) days, the City of Petal
shall, by the use of Municipal Emplayees or by Contract, proceed to clean the property by exercising its rights under the

‘ng of Private Property” section of the Muississippi code 21-19-11.

SECTION 3.

That all cost incurred by the Municipality, if any, phus penalty, if any, shall become as assessment against said
property, all authorized and permitted pursuant to Scction 29-19-11 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended

SO, RESOLVED, on this the 17" day of July, 2018 A.D,
(SEAL)

ATTEST:
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Proclamation

Whereas, on August 6, 2002 Tom Hardges, Jr. was appointed as Director of Parks
and Recreation for the City of Petal, Mississippi; and

Whereas, the city’s recreation programs and facilities have been greatly improved
and expanded under his leadership and direction; and

Whereas, though his accomplishments are too lengthy to list completely, they
include the playgrounds at Hinton Park and Friendly Park, the four youth baseball
fields and press box at the Russell Sports Complex, the Skate Park, and the
redesign of the Optimist Park fields for girl’s softball; and

Whereas, thanks to the efforts of Tom Hardges, Jr. and others, the City of Petal
was named as Sports Illustrated’s “Sports Town USA” for the State of Mississippi
in 2004; and

Whereas, under his direction, the recreation department has hosted many
programs honoring our veterans and current members of our military, including the
completion of the Veterans Walk of Honor;

Therefore, We, The Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City of Petal do hereby
recognize and congratulate Tom Hardges, Jr. for his dedication to the City of
Petal and his contribution to improving the quality of life of its citizens as Director
of Parks and Recreation, and wish him the best on his well-deserved retirement.

el pr

Hal Mar;t,/ Mayor

TV

Melissa Martin, City Clerk




ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPINI
FISCAL YEAR 2017
TIE CIY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI

INFORMATION

Geperal Deseription

The €y of Peral (il i) fs lonaned w the morileant mestion of Fistmint Custy, Missiripp. ihsch is
located in e wosshexst juistiun af the Nuwie oF Mialspps (Bie “Suie). Ths City, (el Apel 3, 1974, 15
located on the |aaf Fiver sliacont (0 fhy wrpocsis lomits of ibe ity of Hattieshniy. Mo The City tles
approximalely 91 miles sowh of Jacksan, the capitat ol the Statc, 120 nles northeast of New Orleans, | ovisiana,
ad 100 niles northwost ol Mobilc, Alubuina

Populatin

Ihe population of the Caty Tuas been recorded as follaws:

SOURCE: Consus data al website: wivw.censts.gov; February 2018
Government'

Ihe City operles under the Mayor-Boid of Aldenmen forn of government 1 he governing hody of the
consists of five Bomd members, all of whoni are eleetud from separate words  Lhe Mayor, who 1s electod at
membors uf the Board of Aldenmen are clocted for coneurrcnl fow year terms e carrent Mayor and

large.
members of the Board of Alderuin wliose terns cxprre July, 20214, are:

Nawe Olocipation Position Held Since

sl Marx Mayor 2009
Williams King Berd 2013
uved (daytom Masmiicna towper 2005

Sinnger Fwsiness fhwier 2001
i Moote | st racwa € Pormce 2014
Brud Amacker Tiehe) 2013
Ty Ecker Small lusiness owuer (Insumnce sales) 2013
i Bk Small Business Owner (screen ponling) 2013

Transportation

Acess (o (he City is availnble by severnl means. Interstate lighway 59. U. S {highways 11,49 nnd 08 and
State Highway 42 serve the immediate area. A number of Cauuity highways pravide access fo many owllying arcus
1 the Caunty.

! A ol bsbnary 2018

Henil servace e provaded o e ity iy W et Camrad Coor Knnlressd sesd thes NIk sttt Bslwey
Muizoe pmsin fiaght cormon e authoeieed b v the Dy, an ot i i the iy el Hlestiesderg. Mivsssaipp
commurael dddivay o The pesol ammmaanl s i New (ndons sl Aaest, (00 nules
ettt wf the $ity  Commeser sin sorvos iv availabis weossedat ol e City o Pine Hell Begional Airpon,
vy alon frum e 4 py. el [Lsmuaking Airport. theoe tmics from (he Ciry. The rkmsest pon oa the Por ol
(il ot which faes o chumeset Septh o 30 foo annd i bocased 73 seabes divkant m Vlasrinn Connty

Per Caplta Jncame’

Comndy s %
Yem Ukamny Missdssipge Uil Bices, s
2016 535451 315404 549245 12%
2015 1apia 34.757 48451 72
2004 RERTH 34213 Abavd 1]
2013 32616 31327 44491 7
2012 3150 3LV 44.282 74

SOURC Bureau of Eeononue Analysis: Regiongl teonomic Acoounls al website: www.ben.gov, 2012

2016: Februry 2018
Mujor Emplovers

“The foliawang is a bstng of the Caty's major enmployers. they products o1 scovices and therr approxmale
numiber of employees:

{mployer Hisghivwws Producy/Senige
Petal Schuol Ihainel 538 idiwsamaii
WakMait 263 Mol
Serce Master Co. i3 Cleaning & Services
By Thane 140 Ruwai)
Linbri 95 1 Lol
Picree Constuction & Mainlenunge LE)
LCluli's Gull & Har 73 Revtaignin
Lifird Machine of MS 70 Mumfagnasissy
Couner Murket ] Growry/Relail
Ln Staic L LLc 50
Diversified CPC Intemalional L. 30

* Per eapita persamal inconie was compiiied wsing Census Buenn nudyear populntion estmales Estimales
for 2012-2016 reflcet county population estinales asuitable as of February 2018,

A2
SOURCE: City Clerk, Mareh 201%
Retall Sales
Stuts Flsead Var
Ended Juge 30 Aano st
2017 $194.183.041
2018 187.963.616
2015 184043 856
2014 173,547,777
3
2013 165053146
SOLREI

Anewsl Hejmat Wit emh year shown, Mhssissppi Depuriment of  Reveow's website
e ddew o o Fbemmery 2013

August
Veur | dom | ten | M | ape | Moy | dwe | g | nug wat, | Nov. | Der | Avoruge
3093 | aot ) 9| ss) so] woliwi]iei] el se| oo as | wue
toof sal sal 7] wol v wol sol wif st]| = 5] Bs%

dag 77l s esd wol wsl gl 7o) s2laul w3l as] vam |
2016 o908 opl sxi sal a7) 72f swl so) ol 3ol ssl a3 a3n
| a1} 3ol o) s1] an) es] es) s9) sa] s6) 4ol as] s7e

SOURCE: Mississippi Department of Employment Secunty: 1.abor Market Data it websile: www.mdes ms.gov:
Tehrumy 2018,
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Employment Stathitics

pilb B Tk] 2014 2015 2016
RESIDENCE BASED EMPLOYMEN T
L._Civilian Labor Foree 34,420 13,030 32,260 33,000 33,500
I Unenyloyed 3,000 | 2800 | 2400 [ 207 1920
Raic ug [ T4 [l 3
Bl Liploryed e Bl 20580 1oy pIETT]
LIS PABLISIIMEN | BASED EMPLOYMEN |
380 [ X000 | 3250 | 3220 | 3280
!
LN lacluri iate | axsas | larm | 3am
A Agnaullie, Toresiey, Fishirg & 5 0 = . o
lunting
. Mg [ 1% 10
C. Vilises. o 450 450
. Coistrut (L | | 580
L Whwilgasls Frede 1250 1.3 1310
L. Reuil Trede 4150 A5 4,000
3 L] (f AR
A bedlsuaiics. X wa o
! Fimnos & hmussoas 1200 i 119
1 Real Biane Roril A {osung 490 460 450
K Prof.. Scientific & l'ecluneal Service 850 820 300
T Management of Compames & i0 550 55 e
M Adminiswauve Support & Wastc 1,680 1,820 2570 1780 2870
Management
B libatonal Sonaoo hd 0 150 L aH
O.Tlealth Care & Sowal Assistance A 1480 e S50 4760
| At Holorissswment & Rocronisnn L) H b R m
| o A iz & Vood Servies 3660 | 3580 | bses | ism | it
o o 30 40 710 710 740
5 i 11,030 11,160 11,260 11,280 11,580
- 4870 | as60 | 4360 | 4810 | 4740
J11. Tt B 11 38,630 | 38940 | 40020 | 40790 | 41610

Mississippi Department ol Employiment | Secwity:
 Labor Markel fuformalion Depariment ot

website: www.nules.ms gov, February 2018

At

Inytitutions 2017 Latal Assets.
Bank" $ 14.750.900.000
Jansl Southern Bank! 187.233.000
Grand Bank for Savings. a ledeml Savings Bank® T4 72000

Whitney Bank. formerly known as Hunnck Bank® 26.732,520.000

Ruguinn Buik” 122.462.010.000
Frustmark National Bank® 13,842 510,000
Magnolia S1ate Bank’ 333.427.000
SOURCE:  Obuned from FDIC's website: hps://resonreh fiic. gov/hanklind/ . unless otherwise noted:

Assels arc staled os of Seplember 30, 2017

Educational Faclliticy

The Petal School District (1T "Distnel) serves the entire City and conststs of ane primary sehoul, Twn
clewmentary schools, one middle schaol and one high school, und cmploys approxmately 572 people.

February 2018

Enrallment figures for fhe District for the current setiolastic yenr ond the four proceding years erc as
follows:

Larolmces
4068
4402
4,091
201415 A
201314 4.035

SOURCE

Petal Sehool District and Office of he Supennicadent, and Olias of Rewearch and Statistivs,
Mississipin Depariment of - Eduealion's w b/ war/:
liehrary 2018

S effle bocusad i | ' Msssnalpp
# Mt nfblos: beatad i o Hlisassiye
* Waan alBiee bocasid in Blittcvburg, Messvpy

* Wain o Bocmsod in Ol ljun, Mushistjgs.
" Mainy oy b Docstesd i hrimunghin, Albama,
* Wil oo focalid i ek Miransipye
" Main il Joncetad I iy Sprngs. Missivspp

A

VAX INFORMATION

Assayed Vahmtion'
Pabla t'ulily
Assossmen ey Real Praperty Personal Properiy’! Propaty Tolal

2017 364476805 536.174.453 $2.548.443 S103300.411
bl 62330056 37.016.50% 2118000 101,482,644
2015 51772514 AR R 2097.017 Ly
ms 57,023,685 31.270.010 2234000 90517585 |
2013 33.589.451 A magts 3.923.263 11500

SUURCH Office of the City Clerk; Febrary 2018

Assessed valuatons ure hased iupon the following essessinent ralios:

Real il peropnl property (exchding single-family awner-ocaed residentia] real property und miotor
vehueles. respectively), 15 pereent of (rue value:

Single-Tanily awner-ocoupied residential real property, 10 percent of Ime vatue; and

Mator vehicles and publrc utilty pioperty, 30 pereent of frue value,

The 19086 Sesmen of the Ntiivaggd |ipdanes sboptal {lotse Unmsiries Beliien Xo. 41 ke
“HobitiiaiL pomumint 40 wisek thevs wn proyessed an emcnsteet bs ihe Misdspp Eomsttitian of 1090 (i

“Asreadmesr). The Ameodoment psidad. (tar aliy. that 1 1t oy wlall ot
P nsms thar tery fhines e sacsutict st ey oiher chas o1 prpeny,

e Armcodrenl et firih fhre el of openty asd the sucsmnt M which word b aqplicabls
Shoreis inper: (e adeptann of the Amendeent. The ssboosment e st firth in the Ameadimesd 4 Sdentscal 80
Fheas: establisduad by Soctoon 17240, Syesacipys O of 1972, a8 40 cxivsd priv b e Amusrabimer, 1mospt Mt

The Tan Avscwssit of Vot Cojety ssoenves all soal wid persaind propesty st b lasion b the
Vanmry. dntinding propoity s the Cily cooe molr vvbicies el janjsaty swred by b s eompenstions.
Il il which s etz by faie b b pvscnend by the Missisigys Dcpastieeel of R, formaerhy te Siise Tox
Cortrammaons (ihe “Thipartisens 1 Neveomes L

Fostm 30350, Ml Code ol 1972 o0 amondod, pavides Ihat the grvierning slhorised of o
ity which i pecicd willin o ety hiving coinplesed & ety emide tepptanel appreved by i
Hoparumen: of Hoveme ainl whech b boon fside o i eoprs o Dl pust o the sty essciamsir il
ity the oty estod wathen o sserripality e grmided {4 Socthen 167, My Undy of 1072,

** The Iodal mscared vilviation 18 sygrad ih Seysember prooling the Faal Yom af e City snd
e i vl f sl progerty, porossl propeery arsd puikbio siliy Prejay fin the yems juadhasd on which
Laa dap avwnl fiv inc fedliniang Fiasal Yeat s gt Fre snuipls, b tars fin s secesad vahiasion figmes
Tiwr 301 _m!luwa.luﬂmtium dmipszry 200N fon vhe 201708 Fisal Yicas buabgen of the Uity

" Tesfuaten vinabl bowiss aind sunomierinben
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as mnended. shall adopi stch assessment rolls for ils assessment pirposes. e City 18 uttlizing the assessment rolls
of The County,

The City may nol comect of revise such osscssment tolls exeept for the purpose of conforming the
murrapal assessment toll o correchions o revisions made 1o the County assessment 1ol All objections to lhe
smunicipal assessnient coll may he heand by the Board of Supavisors of the Connty at the fime and in the mannay
that objections to e Counly assexsment roll are heard  The Board of Supervisors shall natify, in writag, the
Govermng Hody and the Tax Assessor of fhe City of any comeclions or revisions made by il (o the part of the
Cownty essessment roll adopicd os the muricipal assessment ol

L Lany o 31,800 ¥ fatin
2017-18 | 201617 | 2015-16 ] 2014-15 2013-14
G ) Purpos N 12 12 3% 36 KO
Labrary Yeun 4 095 098 105 102
2002 Bonks e 2 00 159 382 0.00
$25 GO Houds 000 210 o0 0.00 i27)
$5.0G.0. Bonds 5] 518 316 455 447
Solidl Waate 0.00 200 000 000 0.00
lotal dal) ] a3 462) 4621
Potal i [ealbicr
| ssb M s300 | se00 35.00 $4.00 5562
Sahosl Nt 225 216 iu M (K}
spooal Levy 448 456 447 441 RET}
Sharilall Nols b 030 02 03 193
lowl 6257 6202 6208 ) (A1)
s Toal oTe | ez | oRzo] iomag| o088y

Office of Ihe City Clerk: Fehmury 2018

Aol ¥aboermn Yan Callection
Ficcal Yer
Seplomber 30 Amount Budgeled Amount Callopted Priecemce QverifUndor)

2017 $3.083.000 54,104,752 5118752
sl 1470000 1311210 203210
2015 2,950,000 1.H04 991 %4 HATTLES

12} ux levy figures are grven in mills

A-7

2014 28900 129717930 20817939

3.237.875.68

124.665.32)

o1 3362541

SOURCH

ITiee ol the City Clerk: Februnry 2018

Procedure fur T ctions

Ihe Govermng Body 1 required to levy n special tax wpon all of the laxable property within the
geographical limsits of the City cach yea suffieient (o provde for the payment of the princpal of ood inlerest on the
City's gencral obligution bonds, meluding fhe Bords. 17 any laxpayer noglects or refises lo pay his axes on the duc
dnte (hereot. fhe wnpaid lnxes hear nterest at the mte nf | percent per month or fractional part tereof from the
delivguent dete 1o the date ol payment of such taxcs, When enlorcentent vflicers take acuon to collect delinguent
inxes, other [ees. pennltics and ensts way acere, Both real property and porsonal property arc subjec! (o public lnx
sale

Bextnan 213340, Minstiorpys Ulede o 1972, o ey B dmyabod fioim tiiies s Uies. o) ictasd sstuasy
nmﬁdﬁlullﬂhtlﬁhhn”n‘wﬂ-Mol\awwkynl!qwmm-ﬁyar e
oyl fio esch all fands i the sixen duss and in aran

Wirve st b e, el e alt Saond Toabid Bow wads ot the Gt Muosey ol Azl ior the i Mlecslay ol Scpaemibay
Hilliing. oa H v prmny b

[! uf Pyupeety smil | Ak ¥ aharin Loviés

Scuate B3ill N 2672, Geueral [aws of Mississippa, Regular Session 1930, codilied in porl as Seetions 27-
35-49 and 27-35-50. Mississippn Code of 1972 (the "Reapprsal Act™). provides (et ell 1cal and pevsoml property
1n the State shall be nm)mlsed al true vatue and assessed in proportion 10 e value, insure (hat property taxes do
lly os (he counties conmplete reappraisals. the Reappruisal Act pru\'ldu. for the Laul an

s direnssed below

Fhe statute limets ad valoremn tnx levies by fhe Cily subscquent to Octabar L. 1980, o o i which will
1esull i an increase t totl recapts of U grealer than len percent (10%) over the previows years receipls.
exeluding revenue from ad vakorem leses on any newly constructed properties, ny cxisting propertics added 1o (he
s rolls or any propertics. rovionsly cxempt which were nol ssessed in (e next precedig year s himitation
dues ol apply 1o Tevies for the payment of the principal of and the interest an genzml obligation honds ssued by the
City or v cerlan other spealied levies  The hmitation may be increased only 11 the proposed inercse is approved
by n majority of those valing in un election held on such question

‘ax Commission v.

On Seplember 20, 1980, the Mussissipps Supreme Court rendercd s decision 1n State
L of Finds County.

Fondren, 387 S0 2d 712, aflimuing the deciee of the Chancery Unurt of (he First Judiaal Dis
Mississipp. wheran the Department of Revenue was enjoined from accepling and upproving assessiment rolls lrom
iy eotnty 10 the State tor the @x year 1983 unless (he Depariment of Revemie equalized the assessment rolls of ald
of the counhes Due o The infervening passage of the Reapprmisal Act, the Supreme Conr revessed thal part of e
lower comt's decree ordering (he assessment of |nnpcr|y al Iruc value (although 1t must still be appraised at (rue
value), holding instend (hat assessed value mny be expressed as b peruenlage of frie value Pursimnt fa the Supreme
Conrt modilication of the Chuneelior's deeree. un Nn\'slllbﬂr 15, 1980, the Department ol Revenue filed a mostea
plan fo assist countics i delenmining true value. On Februacy 7, 1983, the Chancery Court granted an exlension
wntil Tuly 1, 19K, of ils proviens deadline past wluch the Depariment of Roventie could nol necept end approve X
10113 fiom countics whach had nal yet reapprsed . The City has ompleled renppraisal

Howestead tho,

Ve Messisspps Homestead Excmplion Law ol 1946 reduss the Jocal tax birden on homes qualilying by
law ond substitntes reven fram ofl urces of laxation on the State level es o reimbtusement (o the local xing
units for such ax Inss Provistoos of the homestend exemplion law delermine qualification, define ownership and
Timil the amovt oF property 1hat muy come withia the exemphioi | he exemption 18 not applicable lo Laxes levied
Jor the payment of the Bonds, except os hoicinafler noted,
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Vhuse homeownars who by e the hwtlﬂ"-lﬂﬂl!—lall 'lu v neachead the ape ol sextysfive
(65) yesew im on bofie lmary | =
T rlivar mnulmmﬂdumuﬂum

c e fon
Anmtiusin yetitam whe s Hrsstnbly
federal Social Secunty Act are cxemyt B auy und all ad il Ao quali g hoincsteads oot in excess of
$7.500 of assesseal valuz thercol.

Ihe 1ax doss resultng Ko locul nxang units from properly qualified homestead cxemplions is reimhursed by
the Departnent of Revenue, Begining with the 1984 supplements] ad valorem tx roll and for cach 1ol therealler.
no laxing urt shall be reimbirsed an amount in exvess of one himdred six pereent (106%) of Ihe (otal uct
rambursenicnl nade 1o such laximg wl in the next procceding year.

1he ten largest taxpyars m the Gity of Petnl for fiseal year 2017 are as ollows:

Toxpaver Ansexsed Vahumtion Taxen Cgllected
IHIAL GAS S1ikAGE 3111864 £005A2 33
EN TERPRISE PRODUCTS COMPANY 630,132 280.078.20
WAL MART ST HOE 1674506 730278
LOPE % P L N e i 1470511 07,043 83
DIXIE ELECTRIC POWER 1.390.549 64,257.26
JARGA DOWNSIRIAA 1026572 4484288
MUSSISSIPI POWER N 19.381.00
GLORGIA POWER 686 644 3173167
18 N T d60 384 |
HAL L SHRVICIL AL, 5L 2412703
TGIALS: £26.769.073 $1.23L107.04

SOURCE: Oflice of the Forresl County Tax Assessor/Colleator. Manch 2018
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MINUTE BOOK 36,11

{As of March 1, 201%)

15% Debt 20% Debd
Authorized Dehl Limil (Tast Completed Asscssnient [ar
Losaling - $102360.611) $15359.942 $20479.22
Preserm | b Suibjoct o [t Liresns 12.600.030'" 15,810,000
Margie e Vesthier Db ARS] it of Honds $4.660.922 34660922

Statutn, bt Limlts

The City 15 subect Io @ general statulary debt linsation under which no mumeipality i the State iy incur
gcnenl obligation bonded indeblednors 10 an amount which will exceed 15 percent of the assessed valie ol the
waable propaty within such mmcipalily aecording o the last compicied assessment for laxation

In computing genieral obligation bonded indebtedness for pirposes of such 15 percent hmutation, there may
be deducied all bonds or vihor evidenees of 1ndchiedns for school, waler and sewerage syslenis, gas amd
light and power puposes and for the eonstruction of special improvements prinily chargeable lo (e property
benefited, or for the pirpose of paying & mllmupuhly s proportion af any betlcrment prograi, u portion of which is
primasily chaipeable i the propsrty L in ne case ey # shovmsipiily it diry edichisten

priable tn whole on b pet fpore proceeds of sl udnmn axes -Hl when sdded I adl of oie snisring ponced
obfiganim iekdtiabnres, oy hondod and flafmg. sxeeods 20 peovess of The ssccd value il the taable pregpery

within such municipality

In rriving of the limitations scf forth above. bands isued for school piposes. bonds payable exchusively
from the revenues of by mumcipally-owired wility, gereral obligation industrial bonds issued under the provisions
of Scctions $7-1-1 10 57-1-5 k. Mississippi Code of 1972, as amen und sp\.:ml assessment improverment bonds
1ssued under (he provisions of Scdtions 2)-41-1 10 21-41-53, Mis: ‘ode of 1972, 8y emended, arc not
it Also sxcloded from both Hinstaions are comrer abligetnne sobjec to sl oppropristions

" The General Obligation Water and Sewer Refunding TBonds dated ¥ 2015 (2015 GO WES
Munds ) e only subjeet 1o the 15 debt limtatiun of the Cis (o the eXtent the amoant of et 1ssucd iy 1 e¥oon
ol the drTerenet between the 15% and 20% debl lmmiation (520,479,922 - $15,359,047  $5.119,980), as the net
roventies of the combined wates and sewer systom of the Cily were pledged 10 he repayment of the 2015 GO W&S
Bonds A portion of the GO W&S [5onds in the amount of $1.390.020 (56,510,000 — $5.119.980 - $1.390.020) was
ncluded in the 15% debt limitation figure.

A-10

Uhutstooutizep €ice rol Cpbibgntioss Moepded Dyt Sbrbest o Oci Limite

(As of March 1, 2018)

Lo Dty of fasite Outstanding Pringpal

Cienmal {00 Rt 115300

CGignernl Obligation [onds 06/12/14 730,000

Gmeral (il & dioans 2800800

cneral Obligalion Water & Sewer Bonds" 04/09/15 6510.000 |
ncral (Jhligalion Watcr & Sewor Relunding,

0209/16 4,520,000 |

[T Jlsalnen ]

(As of March 1. 2018)

Lusue Datc of Issue

$1.537.186

Mg

Y Ylwse Bonds meluded an additonal pledge of the net revennes of the combined water and sewer system
wd wrc sinly stibjech b the 1 5% debl hinutation of fhe City (o the extent Ihe smount ol debt issued is in exeess of the
difference betweestthe | 3% end 20% deta lnmtasien.

Asll
" ik
FY Reding Panped O
Sagiember 30 Toewwst [

iy A1 i a6 Wipatty |y dwsma
) e LSl A1A06AT
2m Ty potamte | sewnsnn
2031 A1 g [LILRe N i Azt
Nt P umans | st
P ) $ L DAIHILLID 53154101 76 M
.1 FIRG T A RTINS ‘Iﬂ"&"
F- ] 1w s AINER o= 2 o
. h] A e g 22438 ML A1 A
pored SK07100 10 B s AL
ok ] Aanduhs A1 s 11 s s i
bt ] $925 006 AN I 5 L1539 Abu by
i [ PN Wi N1 e
Seu $1az) 0000 _ssugoum A1ty S
Jx B4 B ot Al k)
Pod 1481000000 sipnawsin | 51000230633

* Above chort does inelude the CGeneral Obligabion Woter and Sewer Refunding Bands, Senes 2015 (ihe "2015 Bonds™), howe
securcd by the plidge of the nel revenucs of The combined water und sewer synein und are only sublet o the 20% deb mtation of i

A2

v, the 2015 Honds arc
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Kienrel Obzetion Numard e
Pl ) M
Iomo
il T 111 TR It

i 3. [ - o 3 -
Clumga] b phoaiy § 71 5oty a - 2. 2 o
Adsmial 1A getien fhanda i i) e & pLil 3 g L3y
i q0y 1 3o [P | s e 148 s vy
Miwdigeiziay i o wiion | wmwmn -
Lhinarhd (Megaiien Relondag Moadi |2 2311} a3 1 o 1o L. e~
L d L W il S wt Bl st g Wbt (8% 130 0 L (S0 B - -
Courat | Slgaiies o bundiag [bandty 20k | At Py a4 - e
| s SRRt | Flecmpon | §12a03 000 a6 PN

™ Abm ¢ chart dncs inchude the Gencral tbligalion Waler ond Sewer Refunding Bnnds, Seaes 2015 (the 2015 Bonds®), however, the 21115 onds are
sscureal by the pledae ot net revenues of he camhingd waler und sewer sysicnt ind are only subjeet 10 the 20% debl lomtation of the Gily

A-13
Tretnl € ibdigatian Deb 1o
| FYFodadSoptamber30 | Geseed Obligstica Dt | Nules:
2017 515.810.000 15.44%
18 ATY.000 (LX)
2018 12.413.000 1330
2014 6.960.000 70
2013 58 B.M .40
(As of Febrary 2018)
Chemenad kliganien | Domdod Lo Per
County 2010 Populition ‘Hooked bt Capits
Farrca Uiezsly 74934 530,265,000 $403 89
Tatal General Oblgation Bonded
Schoal Distric Debt
Peial School Distnet $5.465.000

SOURCE: 2016 Andited

nancint Stateinent of Iistrict

EXHIBIT A

Event Notlce

The City certifies lhat nonz of the event bolices have vecurred with respeet to the Bands:

(1) Principal and inlerest payment delinquanicies;

@ Non-payment related defaulls, 1f matenal;

@) Unscheduted dmws on debt service resurves, if any, reflecling financinl difficulties:

@) L

A fivanciul difficultics;

(5} Subsiitutian of credit or liquidicy providers, or their fuslure to pecforn;

Adverse tax opinions, lhe 1ssuance by the Internal Revenue Service of praposed or final
determunations of texability, Nolices of Pruposed Issuz (IRS Form $741-TEB) or other matenal foticss or
decerminntions wilh respect Lo the @x stalus of the Bonds, or other materinl events affecting the (s stows

of the Bonds;

) Modifications (o rights of Bondholders, if matenel;

) Bend el o mitmal, sad teodst wllm,

(8)  Defensances;

(1) Release, substututian, or sale of property, if aay, securiig repayment of the Bonds, if

muterial;

(W) Raing changes;

617

APPENDIX B
INFORMATION ON THE COMBINED WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM
OF THE CI'TY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
FISCAL YEAR 2017

General

Ihe City o Pelal. Mississipm tthe ity ) owns and operates the System through its Departmianl of
Public Works 'Ihe water system utilizes four (4) waler wells having a capacily of (wo (2) million gallons
per day (MGD). e average daily usage of waler is 1.4 MG with the peak daily usage of water is 1.7
MGD. There is approximalely £26 miles o' water lines  The sewer systent consists ol sewer intereeptor
and tansmission lines wilh the treatment vl sewer in the regional sewer plant in Hatuesburg, Mississippi
The Cily is responsible for collection and transportation of sewer (o the regional plant, The average daily
usag of sewer 18 one (1) MGD and peak daily usage ol sewer is .3 MGID. ‘There Is approximately 65
miles of sewer lines

Ihe City has met all requirements set torth by the Mississippi Deparfment of Natural Resources and the
Environmertal Protection Agency.

Capital nprovement Prograin

“The City will conlinue to make normal improvements, extensions and repairs lo the System in gencral
confonnance with the City's capilal inprovement plans

Cotnbined Watcr and Sewer System Enterprise Find

e System is maintainied as a separate accounting enlity and is operated as an "enterprisc fund " Such
fund is used to account for water and sewer services provided 1o residents of tie City and some residents
oulside the incorporated arca of the City - All activitivs necessary (o provide such services are accounted
lor jn this fund inchiding inigirat incering, punping and purification, ission and
digtribution, financing and debt service and billing collections

Management of the System

‘The System is operated by the C Department of Public Works under administrative control of he
Mayor The Clerk, as (he financial officer of the City, maimains the books of accounts and preparcs
linacial stalemenis for the System

Establishment of Rates

Rales for waler and sewer services are established by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen which, il a series
ol bonds are outstanding, must consider, among other things, the rale covenant conlained in the bond
resolution Newly adopled rales become chlective as lo cach user one month affer they have been adopted
by the Mayor and Board ol Aldermen, provided however, that such newly adopled rales may become
effective immediately upon the unanimous approval ot the Mayor and Board of* Aldermen hased on a
finding ol good cause and a statement in the adopting ordinance of the reason why il is necessary thal the
new rales become cfiective inniedialely,

Rate Structure

Billings for waler and sewer charges are prepared by the Cily Clerk's office fom data emiered by the
Depanimient of Public Works  Bills are printed once nionthly at the end of each month 1he following rate
structure for waler charges was increased effective Seplember 6, 2017 and for sewer charges effcetive
November 1, 2017

Bl

RATIE SCHEDULE

RESIDENTIAL
WA'TFR
0-2,000 gallons 81300
for each additionai
1,000 gallons used $600
SEWIR
Ilat Rale 530 00 per month

0-2,000 galions. S13.00

for each additiongl § 600
1,000 gallons used
between 2,000 and 50,000
gallons

for cach additional 3500
1,000 gallons used

between 51,000 aud

(12)  Bankruptey, msolvency, recervership, ur sumilar evenl of the Issuer;

(13)  The consummation of a merger, consohdation, ot acquisinon mvalving the Issuer or the
sale of ail or substuntially all of the assels of the Tssuer, other than in the ordinary cowse of business, the
eniry o a definive agreement Lo undertake such an action of the \ermigation of n defiailive agreement
refaling to any such octions, other than pursuant o 1 lerms, if matcrial; and/or

(14)  Appouitment of  successor or additional Lrustee or the change of name of 4 trusics, if

material
THE CITY OF PETAL. MISSISSIPPL
w_ 4ol o=
. oyt
PRI ol . S
40176H06 v1

100,000 gallons

for cach additional
1,000 gallons used
above: 100,000 gallony

§ 450



CITY OF PETAL 618
SEWER MINUTE BOOK 36

0-4,000 gallons §3000
for cach additional 5300
1,000 galfons used
betwern 4,000 and 50,000
gﬂ"m Lo LT Ll
for each additional $ 200
1,000 gallons used
between 51,000 and
100,000 gallons Govsmenntal tngams Stataman
N " 4,040,000
for cach additioual $ 150 Taxes 040,
1,000 gallos used Foelied 688,500
above 100,000 gallons Slate 2,641,700
Local 8,000
SEWER TREATMENT CHARGL Totul Intergovernmental 2,849,700
RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL
Cherges for Sve - Govl 219,503
1 . 2 Chargas for Svc - Enlarprisa
- S50 Total Charges for asrvices gg.%
The ten Largest users of water and sewer per gallow/per month for fiscal year 2017 are listed beiow: m"d forfelts 21000
Miso 431,000
52,550
USAGE AMOUNI ] e
TEN LARGEST CUS IOMERS: {1,000 gallons per monti) (par month) Ezpense
Vasrrcat s Mbihe [ Park 2356 $16500 Ncarman e
T ‘Alderman Personal Sarvicas 3l
Tl o i I3 S Alderman Services 51,326
Luwe s hngubon 17 30500 Total Alderman 213,495
¥ i 3 Judlcal Personel Services 200,052
Bedford Care Nursing Home 63 18500 Judicial SuppiI:s wigjg
aundry 2 1] Judiclal Services. 2
St e 0 Judicial Ceplial Outtay 2,375
Enterprise Products 276 SRS (0 Total Judicial 348,097
|A-) fnvesiments B2 3000 Executive Personsl Services 123,301
. Execulive Supplies 0
[ IS Spociad Mo puieition 17 22300 Execullve Services a,
Huddlz House 207 52300 Total Executive 128,781
El
Chili & 119 30300 Electione Suppllea 0
Toul Led1 424700 Elections Services [
otal. ! |, 2
B-3

e B
[e———
Budgst
Ty ETE) Bl ED i 2016 £l Rovi
3 it | Al | e | bt | s | it Total Elactlons [
TS S — Einsocial
Lol B TR | e i Ly T T | Financial Personsl Services 197,883
ki Flnancial Supplies 12,300
- T BT ERYrTg Financlal Services 487,200
[Pt BTV 7Y N TR VTV PRI 0o T TR T T T Finarcial Capital Outlay 3,800
Tead basbebe by Total Finanelsl 104,183
[Py FTRTTAT BETTarcl B TRTT T lan Ly | pos | Laga!
[ias B s } mmm%m | b | ogui Pursonst Socvices 27'7%
TSon Lugal Sarvom. 2,
i W ) ) () T oo s 2%
ASSUMPTIONS
¥ g o Outa Peocestng Supoles [
Revatacs prostd ( e a1 14 armanly beporing 2 2016
Fxpema :m;::d:n :\.w mlv mmulyth:'.:n: mzm Ol Processsng Sarvces 20,000
N Das Procasiey Cagiul Ouilay 0
o Total Datn Precwsaing 20,000
[ L Obhgmion Sones N016 of the City of Potal, Miesziipp
Police Departmant
Pollce Department Parsonel Servioss 1,634,015
Palica Department Supplies 148,025
Police Department Services 100,478
Police Department Capital Owtiay 2,500
Police Dept Debt Sarvice 111,645
Total Police Department 2,202,683
Fire Department
Fire Department Personel Services 1,737,079
Fire Depsriment Supplies 60,925
Fire Depariment Services 62,400
Fire Depanment Capital Qutiey 21,850
Flra Dept Dabl Sarvice 68,902
Total Fire Department 1,951,156
Bulkding and Inspection
Building and Inspeciion Personal Sarvicas a7.710
Bullding and Inspection Supplies 12075
Buliding and Inspaction Sarvices 103175
B4 Bulkding and Inspection Capital Outtay 2850
Total Bultding end inspaction
RESO1GIION

A RESOLUTION ADOP TING ANI APPROVING THE FINAL BUDGE T OF THE CITY OF
PETAL. MISSISSIPPI, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017 AND ENRING
SEPTEMBER 30, 201§ AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES HEREIN FXPRESSED

RE IT RESOLYLD AND ORDERFI by ihe Mayor sud Bosudl of Alderman of ihe Cy of Pem) Missislpn as Tolhows
hat she fical budgel for the Cire of Potol Misimipn for lbe fiaral yene commancing Gelaber ), 017 wd ending
Septenther 10 3018 4 e sud correct copy of sehich e herchy aiaehed. sl b coiercd at et 3nd (1 ol i the officsa —

= ".}I !

L — et LU e St S e
BE IT TURTHER RFS0) VED :RFD dla o Jinal hudget @ copy of which he
ot 1 herehry sppuonen) and sdkspicd
Highweys and strests
a) jhwe
AE 11 FURTHLR RESOLVED dlst e €ty Cleric shall eauke 1o be puhlisbed  sumnury of the final iidpe o the Cary of Streets and Highways Personel Services 508,876
Petal. Mossuppl for the lircal yeor commenctag: Oetober |, 2017 and cndug, Sepuembes 30, 201H 15 voquurcd by Sesaum Sireets and Highways Supplies 248,750
Pein News: n oewapaper pubbsied o the ¢ ourtly of | ame, widh s penceat cireslation 1o the Chry of Petal. Mivstsaippl. mmd Street Debl mys 209,135
qualsfed to publush loga) Aonecs Total Streets and Highways 46
Phat thus resolulion shall be fu fall force and effeet fronn srad uer aie passags Aldenmen Stringse aade a mation 1o odapt the Rea::ﬁnn Personel Services 842,913
loregomg resotuiion wi the miction wat xcmded by Mdcrmam Bollack Recreation Supplies 69,850
Recreetion Services 116,650
. Recrealion Captisl Outiay 63,000
These and v, g
b Recreatlon Debl Service 46,431
WMerman Arud Amiken Total Recreation 839,844
Allermiur Cravg Buloek. Senlor/Cultu r
bl iy ‘Senlor/Cultural Centar Persone! Services 85,577
Aldeman Willlom K Senior/Cuilural Center Supplies 11,450
Aldexman Clinl Misore Senior/Cullural Capltal Outiay 0
Aldeman Stevz Stringer Senior/Cuftural Canler Services 47,525
. Total Senlor/Cultural Canter 144557
Thire prevent und | olimg “NAY
Clvic Centar
- Chvic Cenler Personel Services 50,232
9 Civic Cenler Supplies 7,025
r—— ek R e [T - T L — Civic Cenler Services 38,800
he B el Al e, e My, n he Sy o Sepmembic ?‘a‘;':'%‘w";z'c?'ﬂ:' Outley gz':gwl
Mt Debt Service 0
. Total Expenee 0,449,735
e e Total Governmental Income Statement 15

WA (F{-fg!h"‘:)
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-
" =X
Budget Budgel
Revi Rev1
Revenue
ntergovernmental 9
Slate 0 680,250
58,700 860,250
Total Intergovernmantal 58,700
Interest 25 680,250
Misc 9 880,250
Transfers 0 0
Beg Cash o
Total Revenue 58,725
Expense
Publlc safety
re Daparime,
Fire Department Supplies 30,000
Flra Deparimenl Services 1,700
Fira Dapartment Capital Oullay 20,000
Fire Depi Debl Service 6,004
Totsal Fire Department 57,704
Total Public safoty 57,704
Total Expense 57,704
021

Total Governmental income Statement

Budpet Budget
ey 1 Rev 1
Revonus
Intergavernmental kel ]
Local 0 Tiaslers 248,375
Total intergovernmental [ Tots! Reveisie 24875
Interest 5 Eapsnae
Misc 0 et Service 248,375
Beg Cash 9,000 Total Expenee 248,375
Total Revanue 9,005 Total Governmental Income Statement 2
Expense
Public safaty
Pali rtmeat
Police Depariment Services 0
Polica Departmeni Capital Qullay 9,000
Total Police Department 2,000
Tatal Public safety 2,000
Total Expense 2,000
Totat Governmental Incoma Slatement H

10 Budgst
Rev1 Rey1
Qerewitimantal Income Statwmeni
Revonug Revenue
Intargovernmental et 100
State 190,000 Transfers 196,618
Total intargovammuntal 180,000 Beg C: 0
! [ Tolal Revenue 186,718
Tramsters. o Expense
Tetsl Revante 180,000 Highways and sireels
Expense Siregts an
Highways and streets Slreels end Highways Seivices ]
Streels and Highways Total Stroets and Highways 0
Siresls and Highways Services 0 Debt Sorvico
Streets and Highways Capital Oullay 190,000 Debl Paymenls 196,619
Total Streets and Highways 180,000 Total Debt Service 186,619
Total Highways and streets 150,000 Total Expense 196,819
Total Expense 190,000 Govammental Income Stasemaent 100
]

Totasl Govarnunanial Income Stutement
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Grvarpapanisl income Biagniay
Revaoue
Ineraof
Transfers
Cash
Tofal Revenue

Expense
Debt Servica
Debt Paymenis
Total Dabt Service
Tolal Expense
Total Governmental Income Statement

AT T

Governmental income Statament
Revenue
c r servi
Cherges for Svc - Enterprise
Total Chargea for services
Interest
Mise
Translers
Beg Cash
Totul Revenus
Expense

Water
Waler Personel Services
Walsr Supplies
Water Services
Waler Capital Oullay
Sewer Debi Service
Total Water

Total Emterprise

Total Expense
Tolal Govermmental Income Statemert.

R w/ o701 @ Nar sl

Revenus
Charges
Charges for Svc - Govl
Total Chargas for services
Interesl
Misc
Beg Cash
Total Revenus
Expenge
Entorprise

ion
Senlatlon Personel Servicae
Senitation Supplies
Sanitation Service
Sanltation Caplial Outiay
Total Santtnt

Total Enterpriss
Total Expense
Total Governmental Incoma Statement

CITY OF PETAL 620

MINUTE BOOK 36

3,689,770
3,689,770
2,000
30,000
0

o
721,770

627,809
205,200
1,442,900
374,000
980,225

72024
15

781,870
781.870

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE
FY 2017 Audited or Unaudited Financial Statements
City of Petal, Misslssippi

NOTICE IS HEREBY PROVIDED that the Audlted Fiuunclal Statcments and/or the
Unaudited Financlul Statemeuts for Fiscal Year 2017 of the Clfy of Potal, Missiasippi arc
wunavailable for filing at thls tlme. The finencial statements will be filed wpon avallability thercof.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE (Submission Status: Published)
FINANCIAL/OPERATING FILING (CUSIP-9 Based)

Rule 162212 Disclosure

Annual Financief Informetion and Operating Data: FY 2017 Appendlx A Information - Cily of Pelal, MS, for the year ended
09/30/2017

Documents
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Coundl City Manager and City Clerk
City of Petal, Mississippi

Report on ncial Statements

c

We have sudited the pceompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, (he busiress-lype
activitics, cach imajor fnd, nnd the sgercgale rematmng fund information of the Cily of Petal, Mississippt as of
and for the year cnded Scptemba 30, 2047, and the related notes to the linancinl statenents. which wllectively
comprse the Cily of Petal. Misstisippi s busic financual statcients as histed 1 the table of eonfents

s the §

Managemenl 18 resporsible [or the preparation and [au presentation of these linoncial slalements 10 accordance
with accownting prnciples gencrally acecpled in the Unitd Stales of Amenca: this includes the design,
implementation, and meinicnance of intemal control relevan! (o the preparalion and fir presenlation of (inanein]
steimenls that ere free from naterial misstatement, whether due Lo fraud o error.

Auditor's Responsibifity

ur responsibilily is o express opimons on these financanl statements hased on owr avdit, We eonducted o audit
 accordunce with muditing standards pencrally sccxpied 10 the \riled Statey of Amierica and the standerds
applicable lo rancisl mudits contained in Goverument Auditing Standards. 1ssued by the Comptruller Gencral of
the Uriled $intes  ose standards requare thal we plan and peform the audit to obtai reasonable assumnce
about whether the Financial stalemments are fiee of malorial misslatemnent

Au audit involves performing procedures ta obtain audil cvidence about the amewnts and dis
fiauncial statements The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgment, nclidmg the us:
nsks ol materiel misslalement ol the Rnancial slolements, whether die o fraud or error, In making thost sk
assessments, the auditor cansuders intermel conti e relevant to the enbity's preparation and far presentalion of the
financis] staternents in order to design audit procedures thal arc appropriale i M einvioe. buit it fot e
purpose of expLessing an apitlion un the eflectveness of the etity’s imtensal conteol Avcordingly. we express 1y
such opinion

An audit also includes evahualing (he approprialencss of accounting policies used nnd (he reasonbleness of
signilicanl accounting cslimates made by manngement, as well as evalualing the overnll preseniation of the
financial statements

We believe that the audil evdunce we have obtained 1s sullicient and appropnatc to provide a basis for our audil
opinons

Z!HS NIGIWAY 15 NORIT LA
LV
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Opiniony

n o oprnion, the fnanaul stlcments refcmed lo above present fundy, in oll material respects, the respective
ion of (e gencral fund and (he apgrepate emaining fund information of Ihe City of Tefal,
ipyi as of Sepianber 30, 2017, ond the respeclive changes in fnancial position thereof for the yeur then
enied in ucsordancs with necounting priniples gencrully aceepted i the Uilcd States of Amenea

Other Marters

Required Supplementary hiformation
Accounting principles gencrally accepted in the Umted States of America roquire \hal (he managen
discussion und analysis and budgelary companson information, the Sehedule of the Cily

Wi Nel Pension Luability, and the Schedne of C i

presented (o supplement the basic financial sialements. Such information, although ot a part of the busie firuncial
stalcments, is requied by the Governmental Aazounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an cssential part
ol finasial seportng for placing the hesic financial stalements 1n an appropriale operational, ccononge, or
histoneal conlexl, We huve applicd cortam limuted procedires 1o (he required supplementary information in
accordonc: with auditing slandards genernily aceepted in the United Stales of Amarca, which consisted of
inquiries of mausgement aboul the methods of preparing the information and companing the information for
consistency wilh nianagenient s responses to our nquitics. the basic (inancral statements and nthor knowlsdge we
obtained during onr wdit of the basic finaneial stalements We da nol cxpress an opinion or provide ay assurmice
an the information because The linsled procedire do nol provide us with sufficient cvidence (0 cxpress an opinion
or provide any essurance

Other Information
O andn was comocted for the purpose of forming opions on the firanaal stalements that collectively
compiise the City o Petal, Mississippe’s tinaneral satements The aecompanymg Schedule ol Swety Boads for
Municipal Officials is presented for pucposes of ndditionsh analysis and arc nol & reguired pert of the basic
finnndnl satements

I'he aecompnnying Schednle of Expendilies of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 1S, Code of Federnl
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administralive Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audil Requirements for Federat
Awards is (he responsibility of management and was derived from end relate direelly lo the underlying accountg
and ather reeoids nsed Lo prepare the basic financiol sialements Such informalion has been subjecied Lo The
anditing procedures applied in the udit of he besic financial statemicnts and certain additional prosedures,
iinchuding cnpaning and 1cconciling swh mformation diveetly fo the wnderlying acownting and olher records
used to prepare the financial stiements or lo the finsnaal slalements (hemselves. and other additional pruocdun.\
in accordance with suditing standards gencrally aceepted in the Urited States of Americs [n owr opinion, the
Raconmpaiying supplementary jnformation mentionied sbove is fairly stated in all matenal respects in relation lo
(he basic finnnael stalements as o whole

1 othor 1nformation sechion, which inchdes the Schedule of Sirety Bonds for Muricapat OfFicaals hns nol been
subjectod 10 the auditing prosedures applied in the audit of the basic firancial statcments and, accardmely, we do
nol express an opinion ot provide any asswEnge ol it

Other Required by G Auditing $1

I acoordance with Goveriment Auditing Siancinrds, we have also 1sstied owr report dnted Jume 29, 2018 on our
consideration of the Cily of Pelal, Mississippis intcrmal eontiol over financial reporting and on our ests of its
compliance with cortzin provisions of laws, regnlations. conlmels and prant agreoments and other matiers.  he
purpose of that repast is 1o describe the scope of ma (esting of interal control over financial reporting or on
complignez TTal report is an inlegral part of an audil performed in necordance with CGovernent Auditing
Standlurds in considering City of Petal, Missmmspr s wteinal control wven tinmeral yzportutg and comphance

Holt & Associates, PLLC

June 29,2018
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CIY QF PE 1S, CI
VANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 Ml

This Discussion and Analysis of The City of Petal, MS’ financial performance provides a
narrative overview and analysis of the City's financial activities for the year ended September
30, 2017, The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the Clty's financial
performance as a whole. Readers are encouraged ta review the basle financial statements
and the notes to the flnancial statements ta enhance their understanding of the City’s
financial performance

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Key financial highlights for 2017 were as follows:

The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liahiiities and deferred Inflows at
September 30, 2017 by $13,158,902 {net position), which represents an decreasa of $78,395
from the prior year This Is due primarily from operations

As of September 30, 2017, the City's governmental funds reported a cambined fund balance
of $3,166,382, which represents a decrease of 51,192,819

During the fiscal year the City decreased its fang-term debt by $1,161,612 as a result of
normal scheduled debt payments, and cbtaining $198,568 of equipmant financed by capital
leases

The govarnmental activitles expenses exceeded revenue and transfers in by approximately
$34,593 resulting 1n a net decrease jn net position The City's business-type activities
expenses and transfers out exceeded revenues by approximately $78,355,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussian and analysis serves as an introductian ta the City's basic financlal statements, which
include ide financial fund financial and notes to the financial
statements.  This report also contains requirad ¥ i y
tnformauan, and ether information

The gawernment wide Unbncal statements e designed 1o provde the feader with & broad oversew
of the City's finance, in a manner similar to 3 private-sector business

The Statement of Net Posittan presents information on all the City's assets and liablities, with the
differences between the two reported as “net assets” Over time, increases or decreases in the City's
net assets may serve as a useful ndicator of whether tts financial pesition 18 improving or
detenorating

OF PETAL 627
UTE BOOK 36

CI1Y OF PEYAL, MISSISSIPPT
ALANAGENENT"S DISCUSSION AN ONALYSIN
FOR YEAR ENDED SEPITEMBER 302017

GOVERNMENT WIDT HMANCIAL AlA| s
Net pesition
Nel position may scrve over time as a uselul Indicator of the City's financial pasition. Assets and deferred oulfiows exceeded liabilties and deferred intlows
by $13,089,661 as of September 30, 2017.

The Ey's bl pwfiem i 3 product of several financial tansaclions including the net result of activites, the acquisition and payment of debt, the
acpistion and et and the
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The Statement of Activities presents mformation shawing haw the City's Net Position changed during
the mast recent fiscal year. All changes in Net Position are reparted as soon as the underlying event
gwving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported In this statement for some iterns that wiil oniy result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statemants outling functions of the City that are principally supported
by property taxes and intergavernmental revenues (gavernmental activities) from ather functions that
are intended to recover all ar 3 significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
{business-type activities) The governmental activities of the City include general government, court
public safety, public works, culture and recreation and debt serviee The business-type activities of the
City include water and sewer fund and solid waste fund

The government-wide financial stataments can be found in Exhibit A and B of this report
Fund Financial Stataments

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that (s used ta maintain cantral over resources that have been
segregated for specific actvities or objectives. The Clty uses fund accounting to ensure and
demanirate compRance with finance-related legal requirements Al of the funds of the City can be
divided into three categories governmental fundy, proprintary furds and fidueiary Rindy

Governmantal funds — Most of the City's general activities are reported in its governmental funds
Governmental funds are used to account for essentiatly the same functions reported as governmental
actwitees in the ide financial However, funds are

for using the modified accrual basis of accounting and the flow of current financial resources
massare oo, The spproach fesunes an near-term inflows and outflows of spendable rescurces,
as well as balances:of ssendabie resources available at year end. The governmental fund statements
provide a detailed view of the City's near-term financing requiremnents.

Because the forus of governmemtal funds 1s narrower than that of the government-wide financiat
statements, it is usefui to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
infarmation presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements By
doing so, the reader may gain a better understanding of the long-term impact of the City's near-term
financing decisions. The governmental funds Balance Sheet is reconciled to the Statement of Net
Position, and the governmentai funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances Is recanciled to the Statement of Activities to facilitate this companson between
governmental funds and governmental activities

The City maintains nine individual governmental funds which are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation

The basic governmental fund finaneial statements are presented as Exhibits D and C in this
report,

Companent Unit -The “Petal Public Improvement Corporation” i treated ai s blended
cormponent unit and reported as a gavernmental fund

CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPT
ALF SI)IW USSION ANVD ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Changes In net pasitian
Governmental actwitles decreased the £y net positon by 534,643 and the business activiues decreased the Cily's net position by $113,043 The key
wlemersy ol Phese hamge ahe ongaonbond im thy efsmey statemrmt. These decreases are pimanly esult of operations
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Proprietary funds — The City maintains two different types of propnietary funds. Enterprise funds
are reported in the same way as the business-type activities reported in the government-wide
statements but provide more detail and additional infarmation, such as cash flows The City
uses enterprises funds to account tor its water and sewer fund and solid waste fund both of
which are considered major funds Internal service funds are an accounting device to
accurnulate and allocate costs internally among various City funds and functions The City uses
Internal service fund to account for its vehicle fuel cast This fund )s included with the
governmental activities in the government wide financial statement and as a separate calumn
In the proprtary fund liaancis! statement.

The basic proprietary fund ot E, F and G in this report

Fiduclary funds — Fiduclary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the City Fiduciary funds are not refiected In the government-wide financial statements
because resources of those funds are nat available to suppart the City's own functions. These funds
are reported using the accrual basis of accounting

The basic fiduoary fund finanaial statements are presented as Exhibit H of this repart

Notes to the financlal statements

The notes pravide additianal informatian that is essential to a fuil understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be
found immediately followng the basic financial statements.

Raguired Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this repart also presents
budgetary comparison schedules, the Schedule of City's Prnpomonate Share of Net Pension Liability,
and the Schedule of City's Cantril as required suppl fon. The City adopts an
annual operating budget for all funds A budgetary comparison ~chedule has been provided for the
General Fund and each additional major special revenue fund as required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

Other Information

Although not a required part of the basic financial statements, this report also presents certain other
supplementary information requested by the Mississippi State Audrtor’s Office

CT1Y OF PETAL, MISS;
MANACGEAENT'S DISCUSSION AND_INALYSIS
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Clty uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Gavernmanta funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide Information on current inflows,
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. |n particular, unassigned fund batance may serve as a useful measure of the City's net resources
avallable far spending at the end of the fiscal year

As the City completed the year, Its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $3,166,382, a
decrease 0f $1,192,819, $2,572,738 or 81%, of the fund balance is unassigned, which is available for spending at
the City's discretion The remaining fund balance is either nonspendable, restncted, cammitted ar assigned to
Indicate that it Is not available for spending except anly for the purposes to which it is restricted, committed or
assigned.

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City, The decrease in fuad balance in the Generat Fund
for the fiscal year was $913,145. The fund balance of Other Governmental Funds showed a decrease in the
amount of $279,674 These decraases result primarily from completion of street paving and other
infrastructure projects,

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type informatlon found in the government-
wide financial statements, but 1n mare detail

Unrestricted net position of $513,958 is comprised of $740,656 for the water and sewer and $173,302 for the
solid waste fund, User fees and charges were suffleient to cover costs this year. The decrease in net position of
$18,300 for the water and sewer fund and decraase of $25,502 in the salid waste fund was due primarily to
operations

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The City's budget is prepared according ta Mississippi faw and 1s based on accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of cash receipts, dishursement and encumbrances One of the most significant
budgated funds 15 the General Fund

During 2017, the City's general fund budget was amended. All recommendatioas far a change come from the
department heads ta the City Clerk for review before going to the Mayar and Board of Aldermen for
consideration. The City does not allow budget changes that modify line items within any department withat
Board approval. The General Fund is closely monitored for possible revenue shortfalls ar over spending, since it
supperts so many departments. The General Fund original budgeted revenues were $7,528,400; with the final
budgeted amount being $10,162,194; and with $10,086,282 in actual revenue collections. The General Fund's
original budgeted expenditures of $7,608,219 were amended to $10,372,247, with actual expenditures of
$10,192,943.
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Nat included above but reported as long term debtn the hnanciat statements 1s the aceumulated empfoyee leave time that would be paid as
employees tahe leave or retre Under GAAP repartng, this abihty must be reparted as a campensated absence at year end, due ta contract

language to the effect thal the employee has “earned” this compensalion and thus is “owed” ta them
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CITY OF PETAL
STATEMENT OF NET POSTION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
Exhibit A
Governmentat Business-type
Activities Activinies Total
AERETL AND DTHAN DESITY
Lok ang o™ waurslinty $ 3,098,014 4 1,645,860 $ 4743874
et of 4,717 405 98 206 4,815,611
Due Iram other funds 208,513 99,423 307936
Unbllled revenue 325,030 325,030
Inventory, at cast 11,205 11,205
Other recelvables 21,086 21,086
Frepaid items 13,210 33,210
Restricted Assels
Cuslomer deposits 288,330 288,390
Land 597,495 21,893 619,488
Caplual assets, net 18,832,203 14,478,648 33,310,851
Capitalized interest and bond costs {net) 125,445 125,445
Tocal ety 27,612,285 16,589,841 44,602,126
OFFTARTS CUTTLOWS OF ATROLSCES
Deterrad outhows Feiied to geediany 366081 39480 405,561
U et im0 et rehanding 285482 . __ 8642
Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 652,563 39,480 692,043
LIABILITIES AND DTHER CREDITS
Accounts Payable 181,561 287,652 269,213
Due to ather funds 114,069 300 314,369
Other payables 52,078 86,627 133,705
Cuslomer deposits 258,080 258,080
Acerued interest 110467 110,467
Compensated absences 45,002 4515 19,617
Noncurrent liabilises;
Net gension l1ablity 6,389,201 900,360 9,269,651
Debt due within one year 1,338.096 1,338,096
Oebt due in mare than ane yeas 15,148,567 15,148,567

1,537,634

Tusat ihabititien 25579131

—L537,634
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflaws related ta pensians 688,545 77,088
Praperty taxes levied for subsequent year 4,252,869
Ta1al Oedorrad Infl ow 3f Sescurce 4,841414 77,088
NETFOSITION
Net Investment in capltal assets 3,354,962 14,500,641
s rictad for debd covetanty
Unseatrieard (5,610,659) 213958
Tots! NetPeaition  §  (2255697) S 154145599

The notes fo the Ainancial statements are an integral parl of this stalement.

27116265

765,633
4,252 869

5,018,502

17,855,603

__ta36.701)
5 13,158,902
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

City efficiency and fiscal responsibility, the City Board did not increase property tax rates for 2018

This financral report is designed to provide aur citizens, taxpayers, creditors and investors with 2

and City Clerk at 102 West 8" Avenue, Petal, MS 39465

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factars when setting the fiscal-year 2018
budget, tax rates, and fees that will be charged far the business-type activities In an effort to maximize

general overview of the City's finances and ta show the City's accountahillty for the money it received
If you have any guestions about this report or need additional flnancial information, contact the Mayor

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF PETAL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
Exhibit B
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Exhibil €

ASSEI'S AND OTHER DEBITS
Caxh and other depostls

Franchise foes recemvable

Funes recervable, net of $2,100,000
Due (fom other governments

Property uxes levied for subseyuenl year

Prepaid Inswance
Du froms ofher Fnds
Other recaivables

Foul A

TIABILITIES AND OTIHER CREDIS

Aveounts payable
Glher paynbles

Inswance payable
Due to other funds.

Tow} | abilmes

CITY OF PETAL

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Ml

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Reventies nol evailable - cour fines

Prapeny taxes levied (on subseyuenl year

FUIND BALANCES:

Restricted for bonil

Restricted for prepuid ilems

Assigaed. reported n
Special revenie funds

Unswigned. reported 1
General fimd

[otal fund balumees

Fithet
Uhavemmaital Tola) Grremeatal
General Fund Fumdy Fuindy

5 2545850 S 569,464 s 3.098.014
125.680 - 125.680
43,699 - 43.699
245336 - 245,336
3,700,000 552869 4,252,869
1210 33210
45,640 6212 161.881
49,166 655 40,821
6811200 S 1199220 8 8010510
H JLTEFER RS 181,561
10,735 530 11,265
40,665 . 40,665
224,720 5340 314,069
461,643 45917 541,560
43,609 - 43.609
1,700,000 552,869 4252469

3,743,609 o
. 94331 494331
1210 - 31210
E 66103 66,103
2572738 . 2572738

2,605.948

Hotal Habilitinn. delemved pnlbios ol tewnimaes

and fud halanees

s 6811,290 §

560434

,166,182

1,199,220 5 3010510

Thetiotes o the finential stalements are an integial part of this statemeist
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CITY OF PETAL
RECONCILIATION DF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
Exhibit C-1
Tolal Fund Balance Gavernmental Funds (F xhibil ¢} S 3166382
Amounis reported for gavernmental acuwities I the stalement af nel position
are diffe et because
Capilsl assels used in gavernmental activities are not financial
resources and Iherefare are not repartad in the tunds net af
accurmulated depretianon of $11.403.634 19479133
Qther long 1erm assels are nial available 6 pay for current period
expenditures, and theretare, are deferred in the funds 3,693
Hond issuance custs are deferred in the Statement of Net Position
and amortized aver the tevm of the bonds 125,445
Other long term liabilies, including net pensian liability, are not due and
payable in the curi ent periond and, therefore, a1 v not reported in the funds
- Net Pension liahikity 18.389,291)
Coinpensated absences (45,002)
Actrued mterest expense {120,467
Deferied outflows and nflows of resources are applicable 1o future peciads
and, therefore are not reported in the funds
Unamartized amaurd on debt tefunding 286.48)
Deferred autliows of resurces related (o pensians 366.081
ieterred mmflivms of nemsnt s Felaled binprpviies, (688.545)
Long-term debt, including bonds payabile are not due and
payable i the current period and, thercfore. are riot reported in the funds, (16,486,663)
et position froin Internal Service Fund (Fxhibil £) 47,069
fotal Net Pasition Goverrimental Activities (Exhibtt A) § (2255697
Ihe rroles Lo Lhe hinanciai stalements are an integral part of Uns stateinent
0
CITY OF PETAL
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
N FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
Exhibit D
Uther
Governmental Tougl Guemamneal
General Fynd Funds Humoi
REVENUES:
Praperly taxes 5 4111867 § 560,164 s 4672031
Licensey and lees 901,043 501,019
ML T P e 4,643 843 246,282 4830125
Charges lor services 437,655 437,655
Earmings on investments 3628 778 K416
Gther 357,982 515/6 409,558
TOTAL REVENUE 858,800 10,914,834
EXPENDI TURES
General government 3439373 3,339,373
Court 264,886 368,386
Public safety 4.069.229 /0,448 1139677
Public warks 1,142,903 1,224,733 2367636
Culture & recreation 1,436 800 50,560 1,487,360
Debl service
principal 335957 ¥12323 1,150,280
Inter st 6,913 495,14/ 532,060
Other - 6,649 6,643
lotal expenditures 10,730,061 2,661,860 13391,921
Excess (dehicrency) of revenues
over expendiluies 674,027) (1,803,060} (2.477,087)
Other financing suurces juses)
Transfers 1n 1523386 1523388
Iransfers out (504,261) (804,261}
Praceeds from capital (ease 199,668 138,668
Insurance oroceeds 356,657 356,657
Sale ol capital assets 9818 3818
Total alher himancing saurces {uses) (239.118) 1,523.386 1,284,268
et change ir Tund balance 1913,145) 279,674) {1,192,818)
Fund dalances Beginnimy, 3,519,093 840.108 4,359,201
Fund Balances «Ending $ 2605948 5 560,434 s 3.66,382
o Q12 LY 382
Thu notes 1o the financial statements are an mtegial part of L statenient
2t
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RECONCIIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
Exhibit D-1

Amuunts repurted for guvernmental activities in he stalement of acliviies are different because
Ne change I fune! balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit O}

Governmental funds report capiral Qullays vs xpenditures However in the statement Al
e 1 8 s Al e It At b e o
denreciation exprnse 1his 13 he smount by which apital outlats ecreder depreciation
Capiral Oullay
Depreciotion

atiren.

T Inlne statzment of achlies, ¢rly (e gain/loss on sale of sale of assets 1 reporled. while 1n the
sovernmental funds, the proceeds liom the sale intreases inancial rasouices Thim, the change
10 3¢t aswels diflers from the change in furd balance by the e0st of the sssets s1U

b Deme e Sewrd puova (0 g al hunds,
b isaUg debl increases ong Lerrm latalilies in the Statement of Net Positian
Repayinient of deb1 anneip)l i an expendilure In the gavernmental funds, but he

of Net Pasion This s

e rs g -
the amount Lhat debl procesds excesded debt paymenls in (he current penod

De piymein
Tabrerocns

B G 19 Bl ot Pom ol o 8 e 04028 ot o e R bt
s, whereas Ihese amounts are deferred and amorlized 1 Ihe Statement of Actulics
Ihrs 15 Lhe nel effect of thes differences in the treatment of long lerm debt and refated ilems
Il S St e s ind
Amcsibon o e sedn Mnaag

hine cevenue racognized using lhe Il acerual basis of accaunting in the Stalement of Atilies
€2 1ol provide current IImaneial resources and a1 nor repurted as revenue n the funds

Some r¥penses reparted in Lhe Slatement of Acliaties do nof ceauire Lhe use of current

D
fraegial resauirces anu. herelorr. urs not reporied s expengilurts tn governmental funds
“rety s
At iy
7 Some llems reparted i thr statement of acbwlics 1elsbing (8 the implementation ol GASE 68

are not reoortzd in 1he govesnmental funds
Recarding of pension eapense for the current perioa
e o CITTELtre P LY b T Sy sty

Inleenal servicz fund 18 used by Lhe Uity Lo charge Lhe costs ol aulo ana
equipment maintenance 1o indivdual funds The net reverue {ros | of thi nlernal
e

Change 1n Net Poitien of Goveinmengal Acuiles

The notes to the imancial stateinents are an integial part of this statement

$11192,819)

(LT
o

[T

2,250,280
(198 668)

(30,577)
13,82/

2018
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CITY OF PETAL
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
Exhibit £
I Db Pty b= pevvy
S pas
Sewes baid Waste Fung taty EuelinnSlaton
ASSETS
Cashand casn couivilents 8 pdaamm S 197,764 # 1,545,860 5
Lustomer recewables, net of dllowance 82,855 18,35) 98,206
Due from wther lunds 60,936 3848/ 99,423 46637
\nbilled revenue 263,32/ 61703 325030
Other recevables 12,241 1845 2).08
Inventary. at eost 13,205 11,08
Restricled Assels
“uslomer depasits 288,330 288,330
Lang 21,993 21,993
Capilal assets, el 14,423,562 T 11418,848 588
Tola) Assets 16,524,508 466,236 16,989,841 Aral
UEFERRED OU FIOW OF RESOURCES.
Deteired autfiows related to pensions 39,480 9,480
Tl defereed vutflow of rsources 23,430 33,480
LIABILES
Accounts Payable H i 3 138480 1 2w,652
Clher payables 1,259 .368, 36,627 e
Due to other fands e 300
Custamer deociy 258,080 258,080
Cormpensated absenees it 4815
Noncurienl liabilibies
Rel pession liability 900,360
Total labihties 1393786 143343 1,537,630 148
sl L P
Oeterred nflows elated ta pensions 77,084 17,088
T gl e i Sty 47,088 17,088
NET POSIIIGN
Mt w1 | ietad ity 14,451,555 29,086 el 585
Uereitrated 749,556 143,300 913958 44,454
Fomal Not B, 315,192,211 $222,388 PER 54/ 086

The nales Lo the financial statements are an miegral part of ts statenient
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CITY OF PETAL
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
Exhibit F
Bubiteny b 2 ey S
Wate yna ] o
Sewer Fund  __ Waste und Jotals fugling Stalion
Operaling revenues
Sales $ 2515886 $ 147,081 $ 3,252467 > L1:3Y
Qther fees and charges 98,308 117,079
Olher revenue 184227 287.592
Sewer beatment charges 558 862 558,862
3,367,984 B4BS16 __4,115‘500 645
Operaling expenses
Persunnel services 494,104
Supplies and malerials 262,35%
Dlher services and charges 866,453 208,870 31
CapiLal oulliy expenses 75560
Pension akpense 147,83¢ 147,834
Deprectation and amartizatian 459,985 a1 460,297
Bad debl eapense 54,199 2.447 61646
[ esa— _nrsgse _srediz 381083 E
Onerating income (ioss) 631526 (25,6961 605,830 654
Other sources fuses)
Invesimenl zarnings 2474 194 2,668
Insurance Proceeds 649,373 69.373
Tiansier \ ather funds 719125) 1718,125)
Gain {loss) on sale of assets 1652 1652 1251
Interest expense 14200 4,200}
643,826) 194 (643,632) 25)
Change 1n net position (18,300} (25502) (43.802) 629
Total net position - beginning 15210511 247850 15,458,401 46,440

Tatal net position cnding $15152211 5 222388 $15416598

The notes to the Imancial statemens are an tegrai part of this stalement

$ 47,063
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CITY OF PETAL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
Exhibit G
Rt and Sohd
Sewwr | und Waste | und Tolals
Cash Tow hom operalng achivilics
Cashiceerved from customers texcliding deposity $§ 3220820 S 39417 S 4070243
Cash pard 1o supplicrs (1.351.250) (846.433) (2497.709)
Cash pund 1o employ ees (494,108 - (494,108
Net cash provided (used) by opering acuvilies 1175462 2964 1,178426
Cash Naw rom noncapatal Jinahcmg acivitics
Insmanee proceeds 69373 . 0,373
{ransler from other funds W7.330 107.7%
(rmsler 10 other Limds 1719.125) (719.125)
Net cash Mows provided (used) by noncupital
Hompemg activines (49,752) 107,730 (342022}
Cush Now fiem capiial Hnancing aetivines
Principal paid on bonds 121008y 210001
nierest pard (4,2601 142000
et eash Nows provided (used) by capital
limaucing activilies 1262w} (244,200
Cash R from investing activilies
Pegods from e il s 1,652 1482
Puachas: ol assels [FARNKMT) [FELEALT)
Interest 1eeerved 2474 ™ 10hy
Netcash Dows ovided (used) by smvesting achivities (229.609) {1 120413
Net increass (dectease ) in cash Jor (he venr K190k 110.838 192,789
and restneted cash - October 1, 2016 1,634,385 86876 1,741.46!
sh andyesticied Lash « Seplember 30 2017 S 1,730,486 S 197764 S 1,034,250
The nates to tite finlancial statements are an inl egral part of Hus stateinent
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CITY OF PETAL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
Exhibit G (continued}
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED HY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Water and Solid
_ Swwes Fand Waste Fund Tetaly
Operaung income (tos5) 5 631526 5 (2569) & 605,830
Ad)justments ta reconcile operatng income
to net cash provided by operating acnvities
Pension expense 141,834 . 147,834
Depreciation 53,985 312 460,297
Bad dent expense 54,199 7,447 61,646
Lies i) deO0ang 1 aceounts neceieatle {147,158) (1065} {148,223)
{Increase) decrease in olher assels (19,022) 1,966 (17,056
Increase (decrease| in other frabilities {36,809) (36,809)
Increase {decrease) 1n accounts payable 81,907 20,000 104,907
Net cash pravided by operating activities $_ 1175062 5 2984 % 1,178,426
Olher Kequired Disclosures:
Interest paid $ 4,200 3
The nates a the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement
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CITY OF PETAL
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
Exhibit H
Aginey

Fands

ASSETS
Cash $ a8
Dy biaiem has handy 6,493
Oihe regpraatie

Tdal ey 56511

LABIITIES
Qther hability 5 6541
Due to ather tunds

Vel bk tingy s 6841

The nutes L6 he financial statetnents are an inlegral part af this slatement
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CITY OF PETAL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A,

B,

The City of Petal, Mississippl {the City) was incorporated in 1974. The City operates under
Mayor -Alderman Form of government and provides the following services:

“  Public Safety * Public Works

*  Culture and Recreatlon ® General Administration

* ludieial “ Water a2nd Sewer Utility

* Solid Waste Collectian

Reporting Entity

The City of Petal is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and five-member
council. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its blended
component unit, entities for which the government is considered ta be financially
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the government's operations.

Blended component unit

The Petal Public Improvement Corporation is a tax exempt entity formed to finance the
canstruction of a multi-purpose center to be leased to the City and to fund other city
Improvements. The Board of Directors of Petal Public Improvernent Corporation is
composed of the Mayor and Aldermen of the City of Petal The Petal Public improvement
Corporation is reported as a governmental fund.

b 13 i
The City's financial reporting entity does not include the following entities, which are not
component units of the City: Petal Municipat Separate City, Pine Belt Regional Waste
Autharity, Petal Volunteer Fire Department, and Petal Police Auxiliary

Goyernment-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The City’s basic financiat statements consist of government-wide statements, (ncluding a
staterment of net position and a statement of activitles, and fund financlal statements,
which provide a mare detailed level of financial infarmation,

The governmeni-wide financial statements (i.e,, the staternent of net pasition and the
statemnent of chianges in net positicn) report information on alf of the non-fiduciary
activities of the primary government and its component units, Governmental activities,
which normally are supparted by taxes and Intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support

CITY OF PETAL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)

C

The statement of activities demenstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a specific service, program or department and therefore clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges by a
given function ar segment and 2} grants and contributions that are restricted 1o meeting
the operational or capitat requirements of a particular function or segment, Taxes and
other jtems not praperly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial staternents are provided for gavernmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, evan though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. MaJor individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Mzajurement Focus Bats OF Accounting, And Einancial

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements, Revenves are recognized when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows
Praperty taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
simiiar iterns are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met

Gavernmental fund financial statements are reparted using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting Revenues are recognized
as s0an as they are both measurable and available Revenues are considered ta be
available when they are callectable withmn the current period or soon enough thereafter to
pay habilities of the current periad. For this purpose, the government considers revenues
to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expendilures, as well as expenditures related to
campensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due,




CITY OF PETAL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

MIN

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont)
The City reparts the foliowing major governmental funds:

General Fund - This 1s the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resaurces of the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund

All other governmental funds not meeting the critena established fer majar funds are
presented in the other governmenlal column of the fund financial statements

The Cily reports the foliowing fund types;
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
= Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than major capital projects) that are legaily restricted for specific

expenditure purposes

» Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capltal facilities

e Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accurnulation of resources for, and
the paymenl of, general long-term debt principal, nterest and related costs.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS:

* Apency Funds are used to report resources held by the city In a purely custodiai
capacity (assets equal liabilities) and do not invalve measurement of resuits of

operatians
Additionally the City reports the following major proprietary funds:

nl ~ This fund accounts for the activities of the City's

water and sewer cperations.

Solid Waste Disposal — This fund accounts for the activities of the City's solid waste
collection and dispasal operations.

I
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NOTE 1 -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cant)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally zre followed in bath the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
staternents ta the extent that those standards da nat canflict with or contradict the
guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the
option of tollovang subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and
enterprise funds, subject to the same imilation. The government has elected not to follow
subsequent private-sectar guidance

As & general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements, Exceplions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and
other charges between the government's water and sewer tunction and vanous other
functions of the government  Ehimination of these charges would distort the direct costs
and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges te customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than as program revenues Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from prowiding services and producing
and delivering goods In connections with a proprietary fund's principal angoing operations
The principal operating revenues of the City's Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund and of the
City's Solid Waste Enterprise Fund are charges to custamers for sales and services The City
2lso recognizes a5 operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cast of
cannecting new customers to the system. Operating espenses for enterprise funds iclude
the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets
All revenues and expenses nat meeting this definttion are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses

D Account Classification
The account classifications used in the financial statements conform Lo the classifications

prescribed in the Financial Manual for icij issued by the
Office of the State Auditor
2
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cant)

E Epcumbrances
An encumbrance system Is not maintained to account for commitments resulting from
approved purchase orders, work orders or contracts

F A
The City deposits excess funds in the financial Institutions selected by the board of
alderman, State statues specify how these depositarles are to be selected

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with maturities of three months or less from the end of the fiscal year Cash
and cash equivalents are valued at cost
G, (nvestments
The city is allowed, by statue, ta invest excess funds in any bonds or other direct obligations
of the United States of America or the state of Mississippi, ar of any caunty or municipality
of this state, when such county or municipal bonds have been properly approved; ar in
Interest-bearing time certificates of deposit ar interest-bearing accounts with any financial
mstitution approved for the depasit of state funds, or in any type of investment permitted
by sections 27-105-33(d) and 27-105-33(e), Miss Code Ann, {1972)

For accounting purpases, demand depasits and short-term investments with maturities of
three months or less from the end of the fiscal year are classifted as cash and cash
equivalents and are valued at cast,

H Becewvables
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/barrowing arrangements
aurstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred ta as with “due to/from other funds”
(ie., the current portion of inter-fund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (Le., the
non-current portion of inter-fund foans) Al other autstanding balances between funds are
reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding belween the
gavernmental acuvities and business-type activities are reported In the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are nat
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont)

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncallectible. Trade accounts
receivable In excess of 180 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for
uncollectible.

The valuation allowance for the Generai Fund Police Fines is based on the City's estimation
of amaunts that cannot be collected

| ey i la f Redoul
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Pasition reports a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This represents a consumption of net positian that applies to future
periods and so 1s not recognized as an outflow of resources {expenditure/expense) until
then. Currently the City has two items in this categary, deferred outflows related to
pensions and unamortized amaunt on debt refunding

in addition te liabilities, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for
deferred inflow of resources. This represents an acquisition of net position that applies ta
future periods and so Is not recognized s an Inflow of resources (revenue) until that time
Currently the City has three items in this category, deferred inflows related to pensions,
unamortized bond prermiums and property taxes levied for the subsequent year

L fow i

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid expenses in both gavernmental and fund financial statements. Prepaid
items, such as prepaid insurance, are not reported for governmental fund types since the
costs of such items are accounted for as expenditures in the period of acguisitian.

K. Restricted Assets
Certain praceeds from the Water and Sewer’s enterprise fund customer meter deposits are
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate
bank accounts and their use is limited to the terms of the customer refundable deposit
agreement.

CITY OF PETAL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cant)

L Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (e.g, roads,

bridges, sidewalks, drainage systems, and similar items) are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets, other than infrastructure assets, are defined by the government
a5 assets with an inilial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount nat rounded) and an
estimated life In excess of two years. The capitalization threshold for buildings and
impravements other than buildings I1s $50,000 and $25,000, respectfully The government
reports infrastructure assets on a network and subsystemn basis, Accordingly, the amounts
spent for the construclion or acquisition of infrastructure assets are capitalized and
reported in the government-wide financial statements regardless of their amount

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets {i.e., those reported
by gavernmental activities) the City chose to include all such ilems regardless of the
acquisition date or amount  The City was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial
reporting of these assets through back-trending (1-e , estimating the current replacement
cost of the Infrastructure to be capitalized and using an appropriate price-level index to
deflate the cost 1o the ition year or isition year). As the City
constructs or acquires adaitional capital assets each perod, including infrastructure assets,
they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. The reported value excludes normal
maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts spent in relation 1o capltal assets
that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or extend its useful life beyond
the original estimate {n the case of donations, the government values these capital assets
at the estimated fair value of the item at the date of its donation,

Na interest s capitalized on self-constructed capital assets of business-type activities
because not capitalizing interest daes not have a material effect an the City's financial
statements

Property, plant, and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight line method
over the following estimated useful lives, with a full year's depreciation expense taken for
all purchases and sales of capital assets during the year, Land is not depreciated.

Assel Yeurs
Bl 40
Improvements other than buildings 20
Public domam mfrsireture (roadv) 20
System infrastveture 20
Yiro frucks 15
Heavy cquipment 10
Fumiturc and fistares i
Vehicles ond cquipment 5
Compuler cquipment 3
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont)

M, Lompensated Absences
It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate sarned but unused vacation and
sick pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the City does
not have a palicy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the City.
All vacation pay 1s accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. The City's full liability In the amount of $43,617 for accumulated
unpaid personal leave is reported as a liability in the City's Statement of Net Pasition. A
liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

N. Long-Term Liabllities
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, iong-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-lype activities, or proprietary
fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bond issuance casts are
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond prerniums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
the debt issued is reparted as other financing saurces Premiums received on debt
\ssuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether oc not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures

O. Net Position and Fund Balances
In government-wide financial statements, the difference between the City's total assets and
total liabilities represents net position. Net position displays three components: net
Investment in capital assets; restricted net position (distinguished between major
categories of restrictions); and unrestricted net position, Unrestricted net position
represent the net positon available for future aperations.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont}

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed,
assigned, or unassigned. Nonspendabie fund balance cannot be spent because If its farm.
Restricted fund balance has limitations imposed by creditors, grantars, or contributors, or
by enabling legislation or constitutional provisions. Commutted fund batance is a limitation
imposed by a formal action of the City Board. Assigned fund balance is a limitation imposed
by the intent of the City Board to use for 2 specific purpose, but are neither restricted ner
committed Unassigned fund balance is the General Fund Is the net resources (n excess of
what can be properly classified in one of the above four categories

Proprietary fund net posltions are classified the same as in the government-wide
statements

When bath restricted and unrestricted resources are availabie for use, 1t Is the City's policy
to use the restricted resources first, then unrestricted rescurces as they are needed, When
unrestricted resources are Wsed, it is the policy of the City that committed amaounts would
be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts, in both
instances, when a proposed expenditure (s made with specific balances identified as the
source of the funding, that specific fund balance will be used

P Property Tax Revenues
Numerous statutes exist under which the Board of Aldermen may levy property taxes, The
selection of authorities 1s made based on the objectives and responsibilties of the City
Restrictions associated with property tax levies vary with the statutory authority. The
amount of increase in certain property taxes is limited by state law  Generally, this
restriction prowides that these tax levies shall produce no more than 110% of the amount
which resulted from the assessments of the previous year.

The Board of Aldermen, each year at a meeting on or before Septernber 15", levies
property taxes far the ensuing fiscal year which begins October 1. Froperty taxes attach as
an enforceasle llen as of the date of levy. Taxes on motor vehicles and mabite homes
become a lien and are due in the month that coincides with the manth of ariginal purchase.

U. S. generally accepted accounting practices require property taxes to be recognized at the
levy date (f measurable and available. All properly taxes are recorded as a receivable in the
period levied but are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Mator
vehicle and mater home taxes do not meet the measursbility and collectibility criteria for
property Lax recognition because the lien and due date cannot be established until the date
of onginal purchase occurs.

7
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cant)

Section 35-57-1 et seq , Mississipp( Cade 1272, requires that the City levy and collect ail
taxes for and on behaif of the municlpal separate schoal district. Section 33-3-7, Mississippt
Code 1972, authorized the City to levy and colfect a tax not in excess of three mills for the
support of any public library system located withm the municipality, Ad valorem taxes
rollected and setlled in accordance with the above-noted statutory authorities are not

I as revenues and di of the City.

The City of Petal entered into an inter-local agreement with Farrest County contracting for
the County ta bill and collect the City’s taxes The County retains a 5% collection fee on
automobile and mobile homes ad valorem and a 0.5% fee far real and personal property ad
vatorem collections, Lien dates for personal and real property are in August. Delinquent tax
payments, received throughout the year, are recognized as revenue in the year received
The miilage rates levied were:

22017
Lty of Petal
Genermb Fund 3097
GO Bond Refundmg 210
50M €K Bond Deht Saviee 379
Library 095
lowtCuy Mills — 462]
ol Ml St School st
Exarnct Mantousace 55.00
T 456
School Limilcd Tax Note 246
Toid Sihonl D Ml 6202

Q
The annual budget is adopted by the Board of Aldermen and filed with the taxing autharity
Amendments can be made on the approval of the Board of Aldermen. By Statute, the final
budget and tax levy must be adopted on or befare September 15 far the following fiscal
year

CITY OF PETAL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SHGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont)

Formal budgelary integration i1s employed as a management controf device during the year
Mississippl iaws require that municipalities budget governmema! fund types on a modified-
cash basis. Claims that have been incurred prior to the end of the year and that are paid
within 30 days are recorded under the madified accrual basis. Prior year ciaims that are
paid after 30 days revert to the cash basis. All revenue is accounted for under the cash
basis. The required budgetary basis is therefore not considered a generally accepted
aczounting prnopil

Proprietary funds are budgeted on a modified accrual basis Madifications to the accrual
basis include budgeting for capital expenditures, debt principal payments and for
depreciation

R Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reperted amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates

NOTE 2- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

B
The collateral for public entities’ deposits in financial Institutions are held in the name of the
State Treasurer under a prograrm established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is
governed by Section 27-105-5, Miss Cade Ann, (1972), Under this program, the entity’s funds
are pratected through a collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial
institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral agamst thase
deposits.

In the event of fallure of 3 financial institution, securilies pledged by that institution would be
liquidated by the State Treasurer ta replace the public deposits nat cavered by the Federal

Depository Insurance Carporation

The carrying amount of the City’s deposlts with financial institutions was $5,032,268, and the
bank balance was 55,150,826
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
NOTE 2- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits  Custodial credit risk 1s defined as the risk that, in the event of
the failure of a financial institution, the cily will nat be able to recover deposits or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an eutside party The city does not have a farmal policy
for custodial credit risk, However, the Mississippr Stale Treasurer manages that risk on behalf
of the City  Deposits above FDIC coverage are collateralized by the pledging financial
institutlons trust department or agent in the name of the Mississippi State Treasurer on behalf
of the town.

NOTE 3- ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE ACCOUNT

Receivables as of the year end for the City's individual major funds and non-majar funds in the
agpregate, including the applicable allowances far uncallectible accounts, are as follows

Other Water & Scwer  Solld Wasle
General tal Enterprise _ _Enterpnise Totat
Receivables

Accounts $ 15680 % $ B4l S 174075 S 1,114,189
Court Fine Recervable 2,113,599 2,103,699
Other Recetvable 49,166 718 17,241 3,815 70,90/
Praperty Tax Recervable 3,700,000 552,869 4,252.869
Intergovernmental 245,336 . 2533%
Gross Recevables 6,263,881 553,524 831,675 177,920 7,627,000
Less: allowance for uncollectables __ (2,100,000) (731,579) _{158,724) _ (2,990,303
fotal net recervables $ 41e3pEl S53.524  $ 100085 § 18,196 $ 4836647

In addition, deferred inflows of resources, which are related to the receivables, consisted of the
following at Septemnber 30.

Other Water & Sewer  Solid Wasle
General _ Governmental Enlerpnse Enterprise lotaf
Property laves levied for use
Inthesubsequentvear _$3,700,000  § 552,869 $ E $ = $4,252,863
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NOTE 4- INTER-FUND TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Timing differences between the payments of expenses and collection of revenues for other
funds and the subsequent reimbursements are reflected in the inter-fund accounts,

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the debt
service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due, 2) move restrictive
amounts from barrowings to the debt service fund to establish mandatory reserve accounts, 3)
move unrestricted general fund revenues to finance various programs that the government
must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including
amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant programs, 4) move proceeds
from general obligation bond issue to payoff revenue honds.

Tronsfers In/Qul

I mnsfers In doansfers Out Amount
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Water and Sewer Fund 5 719.35
Nonmajor Govemmental Funds Geneml Fund S 804361
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NOTE 5- CAPITAL ASSETS

The fallowing is 2 summary of changes in capital assets for governmental activities:

e Nowen
P /206 Aduwments  _ Addinans Deletiont sz
Capilal 2322 ol Using depraciated
Lano ond casenients 5 Aidos A sl
<ansirucion In Progress
o3 o3scts ot nemg depreciatsa 537,455 597,495
Capial 355 Delng deprecalea
Buigings FEERE 1208 2619157
ImErgvenients othct than bunidings 2678245 0983 1716228
Lavipirent
Office & Othes Eguipment 307.940 %124 wa113
Motar vemclas 187393 ey 1352034
Operating Equpment 1565930 V11861 126.200) L713,153
Wttt 18574918 L2101 19799333
o131 assets belng drpieclaled L4730 (30,250 34,235,252
T an manecu gt 1,948,330 (30.200) 20,827,747
R s Lt
——r fssusas) 2511 520,36
v e e i g, IRt (97 4951 (3126 058)
Parwres
Offue ks Other EupInenc 61289} trea t1e2412)
Matar venisies RS040 (@,427) (207
Cuetatiag qulpment [ {106,40) (@ 180} (oo san
-l e (6,387,689 {as5618) 1014304
ol akcurmulyled deprotiation (10,556,787 (470,027 (27,180 12,403,634
18 363,836 1,070.207 (5.020) 1842312
Cenual bueling Swaban
Capital assets veng deprecirted
Venicies 1 13063
Gperatng Equipment 0w o
Lost actmalated depreualion
Venletes 013163) e
Onerating Eqapenent {s.415) {8418
Central Fueling staven cagita) asiery nel 585
Governmenal sctvives cagital 3ot nes  $13362511 § $ 300200 5 (3.0 Ssaa9.69y

Depreciation expense was charged to the following governmental functions:

Dipruc iatesn

Ceneral goveenment s oum
irubhe Salely 158,196
Publie Wocks, swhich mcludes Hhe depreciation of generul mfrastrusius e ol 535592
Cuirs wmd Rsvnar e 171308
Untal governmental sctivit ies deprcomlin expense s 873027




NOTE 5- CAPITAL ASSETS (cont)

CITY OF PETAL
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for business-type activities:

cl
MIN

Balance Batance
Bty frew Aoty 10/1/2016 Ad Addivors Deletians 9/30/2017
Capital assets nol being depreciated
Land and easemens 21,994 s ngm
Construction in Progress
Total assets not beiog depreciated 21,394 21,954
“aaital assels being depreciated
euildings 13,506 13,506
eSS G 1R g 1901 1,901
Office Furniture/Equipment 4,000 4,000
Waler/Sewer systems 27,026,135 160,800 27,186,935
Vrhain 211,834 211,854
Operating Equipment 587,504 72,935 660,530
Tt saiats by angereates w5000 233735 37745
Totals at historical cost 28,157,004 233,735 23,400,739
Less accumuiated depreciation
Buildings (75,365) (6,045) (81,410)
improvements other than buidings 1.801) (2137 (4,038}
Office Furmiture/Equipment (3,600) (3,600)
Water/Sewer systems (12,783,145 (412975) {13,206 120)
Vehieles (173,148} 17,616) 1190,762)
Operating Equipment 442,040 21,212 463,252
Tidist st shorsntics 13,489,159 (459,585} 13,549,184
Waler and Sewer capital asszts, nel 14,677,805 226,250) 14,451,555
Solid Waste
Capital assels being depreciated
Infrastructure 9,896 9,836
Operating Equipment TTESH 122,869
Vehicles 54,221 54221
Tolal assels being depreciated 185,966 185,986
Less accumulated depreciation
infranrucen 13,202) mn {as14)
Opei ity Exiumme 1109,397) {109,397}
Vebreir 23,989 (23989
Lot actumiiiot Srprroton 136,588) 312) 136,500)
Tt Walle Tt sty el 23,298 (312) 49,086
Fats et heme scivrtie 314,721,203 . s (226562 3 $14500,541
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NOTE 6- LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
The following Is a summary of changes in long-term liahilities and other obligations for
governmental activities:
Amaun Ove
Bamece Batunca Wilhin One
100172016 ey aigtions: 83072017 Your
Enerat cpuaanoN BONDE
Gonra Ot Bonc, Sz 2014
$104 225% mamam 2020 s 828000 § s (53000 § 730,000 § 65000
Ganorn Chigeton e, Semn 212
52156 200 3 375%, molro 2020 1415 000 (185000) 1250000 170 000
Garrl Gbngnbon Rotincing Eond, Senz 2015
531 2% -1 0%, o 2028 3065.000 (205.000) 2800000 275000
G Obtiguon WBS Ratunang Bond, Senes 205
Rofundog Smiaz 2008 8 2007 WAS Reverua Bonc:
0310, 25% 4 OB, e F7eT 6,510 000 6510000 N
e b T
e s 008 4 B0 WL S B
i 5% 4 s 4860000 (340,000} 4520000 550.000"
S 16872000 § s (883.000)5  15810.000 5 1,100.000
capiaL Lesace
Dipaih Conel L s 53160 § s (26296) § 26864 5 26864
#1400 e 32018 e poymens
nie e
21— 2265 (5468) 1745 55977
otz
331 matrrs 7 28821 (a8 821)
Pt Caes
13 matres 22017 e (59 568)
o Spetalh vy
B 95K e WD 20 197,703 (@077 16236 47,354
o T
211 mauroz 8122020 160 456 (38 835) 121,801 682"
S Equomond Lan
39 ot 2028 122495 122495 205%
e Dapemen Racve:
#30% Murec 47720 8m 173 24767
St Easpmont Laa
1 554, mere 3732010 zz2850 - {72.887) 14 953 74274
H 765275 § 168,665 § 267.280) § 676,663 §
TN, S st e § remars § 198.858 §  (1.150,280)5  16,480633 §
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NOTE 6- LONG-TERM LIABILITIES {cont)
The foliowing is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities and ather obligations for
proprietary activities:
Amount Do
Bumnce e Wit Ove
1011/2018 Adgilipne Deiglions Xear
EYIME AL OfF 1A 1O 0
565 MWaler & Sawar. Senes 2007
L e ] H 210000 § - (210,000) 5 -
s 210,000 § - s (210.000) § -8 -
BUSKESS. TYFEACTWITY DEBT s 210000 § H (210.000) § ] .
s msazms s 193,068 $ (1,380,780 6___ 16,480,683 5 1,335,008

Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt

Senetal Obliation Bandy
The City issued G O Bonds, Serles 2014 in amount of $1,000,000 with interest rate of 2.25% to
provide funds for the pavement and improvement of streets. General Obligatian Bands are

direct ohligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City.

The following is a scheduie by yeers of the total payments due an this debt:

2018
2019

2021
2022
5 year

$10M GO Bonds, Series 2014

Principal
95000
96000
007
104,000
107.000
225,000

B 730,000

General Obijigation Refunding Bonds

On September 11, 2013, the City issued GO refunding bonds, Series 2012 in amount of
$2,155,000 with interest rate of 2% -2,375% ta advance refund $410,000 of cutstanding
general obligation bonds series 2001 with interast rates of 5.2% to 5.50% and $1,545,000 of the
total $1,775,000 outstanding general obligation bonds series 2004 with interest rates of 4. 0% to

5.0%.

$

Interest
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NOTE G- LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (cont]

On February 24, 2015, the City issued GO refunding bonds, Series 2015 in amount of $3,100,000
with Interest rate of 2%-3% to advance refund GO Serias 2006 As a result all except $235,000
of the Serles 6, GO Bonds are considered defeased, Debt service requirements for the old debt
totals $4,245,880; debt service for the new debt will be $3,907,350, resuiting in a cash flow
savings of $338,530 and a net present value savings of $258,030.

The following is a schedule by years of the total payments due on this debt:

3215534 0 0. Aab. Borcte, Sanes 3017 32,16 G0 Fel Fotien MY
st

2018 %000 ne 2018 LT CE
2018 170,000 23219 019 260 000 75750
2020 175000 19819 2020 200 000 67350
2021 180 000 18219 2021 300 000 58650
2022 185 000 12718 2022 210 000 49650
5 year 370 000 12,850 5 year 1345000 102800

[} [E) i 11188 B 2,800.000_$ 399.250

Ganeral Obligation Water and Sower Refunding Bands

On April 9, 2015, the City issued GO Water and Sewer refunding bonds, Series 2015 in amaunt
of $6,510,000 with interest rate of 2.5% -4.00% to partlally advance refund $4,707,335 of
outstanding water and sewer revenue bonds series 2006 with interest rates of 4 0% to 7 00%
and to partially advance refund $2,230,503 of outstanding water and sewer revenue bonds
series 2007 with interest rates of 4.0% to 5.0% The remainder of the 2006 series and 2007
series water and sewer bonds were refunded February 9, 2016, the City issued GO Water and
Sewer refunding bonds, Series 2016 in amount of $4,885,000 with interest rate of 2% - 3%

The following ts 2 schedule by years of the total band payments due on these refunding bonds
combined:

i L Sy 028 HAUWIOWRS Semen 2518
Paate s tare Pyl nterey
2018 241,875 2018 560,000 [y
2019 247,575 2019 550,000 a0
2020 267,875 0 595,000 L
20m 27,07 021 10000 a808
2022 27,875 2022 625,000 a0}
Syear” 1280000 72628 Syear 1530000 170100
Syear " 3,760,000 502,200 B year
Syear 140000 76,000
e OO0 3 S, - it Lo
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NOTE 6- LONG-TERM UABILITIES {cont)

Capltal Leases

The City currently has seven outstanding capital fease obligations. These include separate feases
for street equipment, fire truck, police vehicles, police dispatch equipment, lighting for its sport
complex, fire truck and radios, These leases vary in length and Interest rates

The following is a schedule by years of the total lease payments due on these leases combined:

Camntal Lemses
Frmcpal interest
201 T FUE
2019 217,043 13920
2020 145,882 7950
el 15811 2222
5 676663 § 45374
sainess i Ty

The water and sewer revenue bonds serles 2006 and series 2007 were partially refunded with
general abligation bonds in April 2015. The balance of these revenue bonds were refunded with
general obligation bonds in Aprll 2016. These refunding issues remove the liability from the
water and sewer fund ta the governmental activilies, Water and Sewer revenues are pledged
on the 2015 Series, The City plans to meet these general obligations with operating transfers
from the wates ind sewer revenus.

P
As more fully explained in Note 1(P), compensated absences payable is adjusted an an annual
basis. Compensated absences will be paid from the fund from which the employee’s salaries
were paid
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NOTE 7-LIMITAT|ONS ON INDEBTEDNESS

Presented below s Sectlon 21-33-303 Misslissippi Code;

Nao municipality shali hereafter issue bonds secured by a pledge of its full faith and credit for
the purpases authorized by law in an amount which, when added to the then outstanding
bonded indebtedness of such municipality, shall exceed either {a) fifteen percent {15%) of the
assessed value of the taxable property within such municipality, accarding to the last
completed assessment for taxation, or {b) ten percent {10%) of the assessment upon which
taxes were |evied for its fiscal year ending September 30, 1984, whichever Is greater. In
computing such indehtedness, there may be deducted all bands or other evidences of
indebtedness, heretofore ar hereafter issued, for school, water, sewerage systemns, gas, and
light and power purpases and for the construction of special improvements primarily
chargeabie ta the property benefited, or far the purpose of paying the municipality's
proporticn of any betterment program, a portlon of which is primarily chargeable to the
property beneflted. However, in no case shatl any municipality contract any indebtedness
which, when added tc ail of the ing general bath bonded and
floating shall exceed either (a) twenty percent {20%] of the assessed vaiue of all taxable
property within such municipality according to the last completed assessment far taxation or
{b} fifteen percent {15%) of the assessment upon which taxes are levied for its fiscal year ending
Septernber 30, 1984, whichever Is greater. Nathlng herein contained shall be construed to
apply ta contract obligatians in any form heretofore or hereafter incurred by any municipality
which are subect to annual appropriations therefare, ar to bonds heretofore issued by any
municipality for schaol purposes, or to cantract obiigations in any form heretofore or hereafter
Incurred by any municlpality which are payahie exclusively form the revenues of any
municipally-owned utility, or to bonds issued by any municipality under the pravisions of
Section 57-1-1 through 57-1-51 or to any special assessment improvement bonds issued by any
murnicipality under the provisians of Sections 21-41-1 through 21-41-53, or to any indebtedness
Incurred under Section 55-23-8

The following is a schedule of li on the i of the City at 30, 2017
Authonzed Debt 1 imit 15 Percem 20 Pervent
Assessed valualion al fiseal year ended
Scplenher 30,2017 ($101.482,644 ) §15222307 8§ 20,206,529
Prosent debl subject to 5% limitation (10,735868) -
Present deht subject 1o 20% limuation
including debt subject 10 15% litmilatron (16,486.663)
Margin for further debt wider 1espective Iimiits § 4486529 $ 1800 566
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NOTE 8-DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

General Inforrmation sbout the Pensian Plan

Plan Description. The City to the Public tem of {PERS), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefts,
annual cost-af Aiving adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiarres Plan provisians and
the Board of Trustees’ autharity to determine contribution rates are established by Miss Code Ann Section 25-
111 et seq,, {1972, as amended) and may be amended only by the Missrssippi Legistature. PERS issues a publicly
available financia! rapart that includes financial and required That
report may be obtained hy writing to Publlc i System ot PERS Building,

429 Mississippi Street. Jackson, MS 33201 or by cailing (601) 352-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS.

Benefits provided Membershlp in PERS 15 a condition of emgloyment granted upen hiring for qualifying
employees and officials af the State of state universiti ity and juniar cafieges, and
teachers and employees for the public school districts For those parsons employed by political subdivisions and
instrumentalities of the State of Mississipp(, membership is contingent upon approval of the entity's
participation n PERS by the PERS’ Board af Trustees. 1f approved membership for the entity’s emplayees 15 a
condition of employment and eligibility is granted to those who gualify upen hiring Participating members who
arevested and retre at or after age 60 or those wha retire regardless of age with at least 30 years of creditable
service (25 years of creditable service for employees who became members of PERS bafore july 1, 2011) are
entiles, upor apch i by t5r Mt m an ernoant eguilte 2.0
pereart of thine average comparaation far each vear of craditable service up to and including 30 years (25 years
far Lhose who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011), plus 2 5 percent for each additional year of
creditable service with an actuarsal reductian in the benefit for each year of creditable servics below 30 vears or
the number of years in age that the member is belaw B5, whichever Is less  Average compensation 1s the
average of the emplayee’s earnings during the four highest campsnsated years of creditable service Benefits
vest upan of eight years of service {four years of membership service for thase wha
became members of PERS before July 1, 2007). PERS alsa provides certain death and disability benefits. A Cost
of-Living Adjustment {COLA] payment is made to eligible retirees and beneficiarias The COLA is equal to 3.0
percent of the annual retirement aliowance for each full fiscal year of retirament up to the year in which the
retired member reaches age 60 (S5 for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011), with 30
percent compounded for each fiscal year thereafter Flan pravisions are established and may be amended only
by the State of Mississippl Legislature

Contributions  PERS members are required to cantribute 9 00% of their annual covered safary, and the City s
required to contribute at an actuarlly determined rate  The employer's rate as of September 30, 2017 was
15.75% of annual covered payroll The cantribution requirements of PERS members and emplayers are
established and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature  The City's contributions 1o PERS
for the fiscal years ending September 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were $573,024, §556,125 and $551,390,
respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each yaar
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NOTE 8-DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN {cont)

Penslon Liabilitles, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows af Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions.

At September 30, 2017, the City reparted a liability of $9,289,651 far 1ts propartionate share of the net penslon
liabibty. The net pension hablity was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liabitity Lsed to
caleulate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date The City's proportion
of the net pension hability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of contribution to the pension
plan relative ta projected contributions of all participating entities, actuanally determined At June 30, 2017, the
City's proportion was 0 055883 percent

Far the year ended Septentber 30. 2017, the City recognized pensian expense of $1,782,.705 At Seprember 30,
2017 the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of rescurces related ta pensions

from the following seurces

Deferred Outfiows Deferred Inflaws

of Resaurces of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

experience $ 157,584 § 96,385
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 485,783
Changes of assumptians 104,721 18,402
Change in proportlonate share 165,063
City contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 143 356 -

Total 405,561 765,633

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in perision expense as follaws

Wear wnihed Septetbe 1

008 5 (1124701

2019 (15.148)

2020 (53.012)

2021 (179.442)

2022

§13600/2)
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NOTE 8-DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (cont)

Acluarial assumptions The total pension llsbihty in the Jume 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied te ail periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases 375 -18 50 percent, including inflation

Investment rate of return 775 percent, net of pension plan

Investrent expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based an the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Coliar Table projected with Scafe BB to 2023,
S forwasc Sam i for male

The actuznal assumptions used 0 the june 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2016. The experence report ts dated April 18, 2017

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a logsnormal

analysis in which b ranges of expected future real rates aof return {expected nominal
retuens, net of pension plan Investment expense and the assumed rate of inflacion) are developed for each
major asset class These ranges are combined ta produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmenic real rates of return for each major assat
class are summarized in the following table

Target Long-Term Expected Real
At Ci Aliacation Rite o Agmyeny
US. Bizad 27.00 % 460 %
International Equity 18.00 450
Emerging Markets Equity 400 475
Global 1200 475
Fixed income 18 00 075
Real Assets 1000 350
Private Equity 800 $10
Emerging Debt 200 225
Cash 100 000
Total 00 %

Discount rate The discount rate used to measure the totat pension liability was 7 75 percent. The prajection of
cash flows used ta determine the discount rate assurmed that plan member contributians will be made at the
current contributlon rate and that Employer contributions will be made at the current contribution rate Based
on thase assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary Ret position was projected to be available to make all
prajected future benefit payments of current plan  Therefore, the long-term expectad rats of return on pensian
plan mvestments was applied to all periads of projected benefit payments Lo determine the total pension
hability

ITY OF PETAL
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NOTE B-DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (cont)

Sensitivity of the City's proportianate share of the net pension liability To changes in the discount rate. The
following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension hability caleulated using the discount rate of
775 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that 15 1-percentage-paint lawer (6 75 percent) or 1-percentage-patnt higher
{8 75 percent) than the current rate

Cuttent
1% Detroiin Dstuunt 1% Intreuie
(6 75%) Rate (7 75%) (8 75%)
Clty's proportionate share of
the net pensian habilily & 121e3geE  § 9,289651  §  68.85715

Pension plan fiduciary net pasition Detailed mformation abaut the pension plan's fiduciary net position is
available In the separately issued PERS financlal report

NOTE 9-CONTINGENTES

Federal Grants

The city has received federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to audit by the
grantor agencies. Entitlements to these revenues are generally conditioned upon compliance
with the terms and conditiens of grant agreements and applicable federal regulations, including
the expenditure of resources for ble purposes. Any i e resulting from a grantor
audit may become a hability of the city. No pravision for any liability that may result has been
recognized the city's financlal statements

NOTE 10-RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is expased to various risks of loss related Lo tarts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; Injuries to empleyees; and natural disasters

Except as described below, the City carries commerclal insurance for these risks Settled claims
resulting from these insured risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of
the past three fiscal years

Parbicipation In Public Entity Risk Pacl:

The City participates in the Mississippi Municipal Liability Plan (MMLD), an insurance-
purchasing pool. The Clty, along with other municlpalities as a groug, purchased insurance to
Insure against losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; and natural disasters. Settled claims resulting from these insured rlsks have not
exceeded the City's insurance coverage since it joined the pool

CITY OF PETAL
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

NOTE 10-RISK MANAGEMENT {cont)

The City is a member of the Mississippi Municipal Warkers Compensation Group (MMWCG).
The group Is a risk-sharing poal; such a pool is frequently referred to as a self-insurance pool
MMWCG covers risks of lass arising from injuries to the City's employees. The Mississippi

Warkers' Campensation Commission requires that an indemnity agreement be executed by
each member in a workers’ compensation self-insurance pool for the purpose of jointly and
severally binding the pool and each of the emplayers comprising the group to meet the
workers' compensation obfigations of each member. Each member of the MMWCG contributes
quarterly to a fund held in trust The funds in the trust account are used to pay any claim up to
$250,000.

For a claim exceeding $250,000, MMWCG has insurance, which will pay the excess up to the
statutory limit. (Ftotal claims during a year were to deplete the trust account, then the pool
members would be required to pay for the deficiencies, The City has not had an additional
assessment for excess losses incurred by the pool

NOTE 11-MISSISSIPPI MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONAIRE

The Mississippi Compliance Questionnaire was completed and entered into the minutes as
prescribed by law. A review of the questionnaire revealed that all items were answered yes or
not applicable

NOTE 12-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that occur after the Statement of Net Posilion date but before the financial statements
are available to be {ssued must be evaluated for recagnition or disclosure. The effects of
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the Statement of
Assets date are recognized in the accompanying financial statements, Subsequent events which
provide evidence 2bout canditions which existed after the Statement of Pasition date require
disclosure in the accompanying notes. Management of City of Petal evaluated the activity of the
City through lune 29, 2018 (date financial statements were available) and determined the no
subsequent events reguire disclosure in the notes to the financial staternents

o
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Schedule 14
CITY OF PETAL
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

CITY OF PETAL
MINUTE BOOK 36

BOFTLE A
Vamre
e ]
Budgeled Amourts Actual Trorer .
el Final (Budgatary Basis afee e A

REVENUES
Propery lexes 5 3983000 § 3983000 § 4111867 § - s 12887
Licarse and parmile 612500 647.500 501,049 35000 (145 451)
Intorgovernmental revenues 2520700 2520 00 2663 836 - 118,138
Charges lor setvices 95,500 85500 216 302 - 120 802
Finen and foreitures 270 500 270 500 221,353 - (49.147)
Other 46.200 264,994 206,775 _ 2.596.784 (248.210)
TOTAL REVENUES 7.520.400 10.162.194 10,086,162 _ 2.833.784 75,012
EXPENDITURES
General Government mrary Az 3339373 (2.470868) (26.392)
udicial Department 206 332 208,332 369,886 - (72554)
Palics Department 21 247418 Trang 11,080 20,486
Fire Deporiment 1630 207 1676648 1774210 (137.441) 202 438
Bulding Inspection 237.300 234,890 194 527 2500 40 333
Straet Doparment 1188628 1252629 1209033 (64.000) 43508
Racrealian 749,07 882000 002231 133829) (18301
SenioCullural Ganler 101,980 1770 131,481 (36 798) 7348
Cuvic Canter 113.200 101,840 119.570 11,380 (17630
ToTAL 7.608.218 10372247 10192943 _ (2764.028) 170.304
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (7819) (210083) (106 761 (130 239) 103292
Othar Financ! . {1,000,000) (04.251) __ {3 000.000) 195.738)
T EHUANGE M FUND BALANCE s 7.819) 5. 1,210,053 (611022) 5 _[1130.234) 5 (62 47)
Adprtmants to GAAP Basis
Revenus Acciuals 634 685
Expanss Accrusls 537.118)
MET CHANGE 1 FUND B Al - AN Dassy 3 ek
FUND BALANCE-BEGINNING 3513083
FUND BALANCE/ENDING S 2605848

The notes Lo the required supplemantary are un ntegral part of this stalement

ity of Petal

ol the "y Proportionat Share of the Net Pension Lishility

las! 10 Fiscal Years*

017 2016

City's proportionalc share of the net pension liability 0.056% 0.056%

(asset)
City's proportion of the net pension abality (asset) 5 9.289.651 10,002,998
Cily's covered - cmployee payroll 3.638,248 3,530,932
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability

(asset) as a percentape ol its covered - employee

payroll 255333%  283.295%
Plan (iduciary net posilion as a percentage of the 1otal

pension lability 61.490% 57.468%

* The amounts presented for cach [iscal year were detennined as of the measurement date of
6/30 ol Lhe year prior lo the fiscal year prescricd.

55

2015
0.056%

8,656,496

3.500,889

247.266%

61.704%

This schedule is presented 1o illustrate the requirement (o show inlormation for 10 years, However,

(ASB 68 was implemented in FYE 9/30/15, and, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Ci
has only presented infonmalion for the years in which information is available,

The notes to the required supplementary infarmation are an integral part of this schedule

ty

PERS
Last 40 Flscal Yenrs®

2017 2006 LIty

Contraciually reauned contributien $573,024 $556,125 $ 551,390

Contribullyns in retatian la the contractually

required contribution ST WAL M1mEn
Contribution deticiency {uacess} $ = 5
Ciy's covered  employee payrall 1638248 3530952 350088y
Contributians as a percentage of cavered

emplayee payrall 155 155%  1575%

The schegule d ta illushate the tashow for 10 years However, GASB 66 was
impiErnenied in FYE Suptember 30, 2015, and, until 3 full 10 year trend 1s compiled, the Distiet has nly presented
informauan fo the yeais in which intarmation 1s available

The notes to the required supplementary infarmation are an integral part of this schedule
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CITY OF PETAL
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

HLEIGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

1) Basis of Presentation The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presents the ariginal legally adopted
budget, the final legally adopted budget, the actual data on the budget basls and variances
between the final budget and the actual data

N

The budget Is adopted by the Board of Alderman. Amendments can be made of the approval of
the Board A budgetary companson (s presented for the major governmental funds cansistent
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Penslan Schedules:
(1) There were no changes in benefit terms

12} Changes af sssumpticns.
= 2017

# The expectation of retired ife martality was changed to the RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Blue Collar Tabie projected using Scale BB to 2022
The wage inflation assumption was reduced from 3.75% to 3/25%
retirement mortality, withdrawal and disability revrement rates were 2lso
adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience.
o Assumed rates of salary increase were adjusted to mare closely reflect actual

and anticipated exgerlence

pre-

o

. 2006
o The assumed rate of interest credited to employee contributions was changed
from 3.50% ta 2.00%

{3) Changes in benefit provisions
. 2026
o Effective July 2, 2017, the interest rate on employee
contributions shall be calculated based on the money market as published
by the Wall Street Journal on December 31 of each preceding year with a
minimum rate of one percent and a maximum rate of five percent

58

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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City of Petal
Schedule of Expenditurcs of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017
Federul Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Federal Federal
CFDA Expenditures(§)

mber

Other Programs
Department of Homeland Sceurily
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially
Ieclaral Dixisters)
Tiwwal Eepertine i wf Flamelamd Socuvity
Torul Expenditures of Federal Avwards

97036

1he accompanying noles are an integral part of'this
schedule

60



CITY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Presented below is Section 21-17-5 of Mississippi Code

Unless otherwise provided by law, before entering upon the dutles of their respective
offlees, the alderman or councilmen of every municipality of this state shall give bond,
with sufficient surety, ta be payable, conditioned and approved as provided by law, in a
penalty equal to flve percent {5%) of the sum of all munlcipal taxes shown by the
assessment tolis and the levies to have baen collectible in the municipality for the year

ding the c of the term of office of said alderman or
councilman; however, such bond shall not exceed the amount of One Hundred Thousand
Dollars {$100,000.00)
Name Position Company Bond
Harold G Marx, Jr Mayar Scott Municipal Insurance  $100,000
David J. Clayton Aldarman Scott Munlclpal tnsurance  $100,000
Jlames C Bultack Alderman Scott Municipal Insurance  $100,000
Anthony T Ducker Alderman Scott Municipal Insurance  $100,000
Steven Stringer Alderman Scott Municlpal Insurance  $100,000
Clint L Moore Idermar Scott o $100,000
William H. King 1V Alderman  Scott Municipsl Invsrance  $100,000
Bradely S. Amacker Alderman Scott Municipal Insurance  $100,000
Melissa Martin City Clerk Scott Municipal Insurance  $50,000
Leanard Fuller Police Chief  Scott Municipal Insurance  $50,000
Lynn Campfietd Deputy Clerk Scott Municipal Insurance  $50,000
Wendy Lampton Deputy Clerk Scott Municipal Insurance  $50,000
Michell Strebeck Court Clerk  Scott Municipal Insurance  $50,000
Anyone handling money Scott Municipal Insurance  $50,000

6l

CIHY OF PETAL, MISSISSIPYT

REPOR 1S ON COMPLIANCE AND INLERNAL CONTROYL,

HoLr 8 ASSOCIATES, PLLC

CERTIFID PURLIC AL COUNTANTS

101 Lol CPA
Founder (1915-1997)

W David Bill, CPA
lulic M. Uber, CPA
Kart M Blackledge. CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOR T
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND QTR MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDII OF THIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCL WILH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Ionorabic Mayor, Members ol e
City Council, City Manager and City Clerk
City of Pelal, Mississippi

We have audiled, in accordance wilh the audiling siandards generally accepied in the United
Slates ol America and the standards applicable 1o financial audits contained i Governmenr
Auditing Stamdards ssued by the Comptroller (v(,ncml ol the United States, the [inancial

of the pe activinies, the business-ype activities, each major fund. and the
agpregale remaining fund infonnation ol the City of Petal, Mississippi, as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2017, and Lhe related noles 1o the financial stalements, which collectively
comprise the City ol Petal, M pp1 s basie tinanceial statements, and have 1ssaed our report
thereon dated June 29, 2018

Internal Control over Financial Reporling

In planning and performung our audit of the Inancial statements, we considered the City of Petal,
Mississippn s nfeinal conbiol over financial seportiog mteral control) 1o determine the audit
procedures thal are appropriate in the circwnslances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the [inancial slatements, bul not for Ihe purpose ol expressing an opinion on the elTectivencss
ol e City ol Petal, Mississippi s imermal santiol Accordingly, we do not expiess an opinion on
the elleetvencas of the City of Petul, Mississippt’s internal cantiol

A deficieney in internal conrol exists when the design or operalion ol a control does not allow
managemenl or employees, m Ihe normal course ol performing their assigned funct
prevent, or detect and correcl, misslaterients on a timely basis A marertal weaknesy is 4
deliciency, or a combination ol deficiencies. in intemal control, such (hal there is a reasonable
possibility that o malenal nusstatement of the entity 5 linancal \ldl menis 'I| nol be prevented,
or detecied and correeted on a timely basis A Yy, or a
combination ol deficiencies, in internal control thal is less severe than a malma] weakness. yel
mmportant enough Lo meril altention by those charged with govemnance.

CITY OF PETAL
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ribed in the first paragraph

M I N UTE BOO K 36()ur consideralion of inlemal contrel was for the limited purpose di
ol this scclion and was nol designed (o identily all deficiencies in intemal control (hat might be
malerial i

or, su_mlf‘ cant Given these limitations, during our audit we did
encics in intermal controt thal we consider lo be malerial weaknesses. We
didt idenlify a certain deficiency in internal control, deseribed in the accompanying schedule off
Tindings and questioned costs thal we consider 10 be a signilicant deliciency 2017-1

Compliance and Other Malters

As part of obaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Petal, Mississippi's financal
slalements are free (rom matcrial misstalement, we performe tests ol its compliance with certain
provisions ol laws, regulations, contracts, art pranl agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a dircel and material elfect on the determination of (inancial statement amounts
Ilowever, providing an opinion on compliznce with Those provisions was not an ebjeclive of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The resuits of our lests disclosed no
inslances of noncompliance ot other matiers (hat are required to he reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

City of Petal, Mississippi's Response tn Findings

City ol Putal. Mississippi’s 1esponse o the findings identificd m ow audit 1
accompunyug schedule of” findings and questoned costs Cily of Pelal. Mississipp’s response
was hol subjected o the audiling procedures applicd in the audit of the financial statemenis and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it

Purposc of this Report

1he purpose ol this report is solely 10 describe the scope ol our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results ol Ihal Lesling, and nol Lo provide an opinion on the cflectiveness of
the eotity’s mieinal contiol o on comphinnee. This report s an integral part ol an audit
performed in accordance wnh (mmmuem Auditing Stundards m considenng lhe entily s
internal conirol and y. Lhis jcalion is nal suilable for any other

Turpose:

Holt & Associates, PLLC
Laurel, MS
June 29,2018
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W._David Dill, CFA
Julie M Uher, CPA
Kari M Blackledge, CPA

H | Holl, CPA
Founder {1915-1997)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOR T ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE: REQUIRED BY TTIE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

Honorahle Mayor, Members of he

City Council, City Manager and Cily Clerk

City of Petal, Mississippi

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Pewal. Mississippi's compliance with the lypes ol compliance
requirements deseribedd in the QMB Compliunce Supplement \hat could have a dircel and
malerial effect on cach of the City of Petal N 1pm s major {ederal programs for the year
ended Seplember 30, 2017 City of Petal’s major federal programs are identilied in the summary
al auditor’s results section of the aceompuny mg schedule of Tindings and questioned costs

Management's Responsibiliry

is ible (or ¢ wilh [ederal stalutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions ol its federal awards applicable 1o its fuderal programs
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibilily is lo express an opinion on compliance for cach of the Cily of Petal,
Misstssippt’s major [ederal programs hased on our audit of the types ol compliance requirements
referred Lo above. We cond | our audit of i in with audiling standards
g«.nual]y acccplcd m the United Stales ul /\mcnca the standards applicable lo (inancial audits
| in Ge Auwditing 1 /v, issucd by the Comptroller General of the United
Stales: and the audil requircments of Title 2 U8 Code of Federal Regulations Pant 200, Uniform
Administraiive Requivements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requivements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) Those standards and (he Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audlil 10 oblain aboul whether noncs iance with the types of
compliance requirements referred (0 above thal could have a direct and material eifect on a
major lederal program occwrred, An audit inchudes examining. on a (est basis, evidence about the
City ol Pelal’s complinnee with those requuements and puitforming such ather procedwes as we
considered neeessary in the circumstances

We believe 1hat our awlil provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal delermination of the Cily ol
Detal, Mississippt’s compliance

Opinion on Eucl Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City of Petal, Mississippi , complicd, in all material respects, with the types ol
compliance requircments relerred 1o above (hal could have a direct and material effect on each off
its major tederal programs for (he year ended September 30, 2017

Rcpor( on Internal Contrel over Comp

Management of the City ol Pelal, Mississippi is i for i and

effective intemal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 1o
above In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Peial.
Mussissippt s intemal control over compliance with Lhe Lypes of reguirements that could have a
direel and material effeet on each major federal program (o determme the auditmg procedures
Ihat are appropriale in the circumstanees for 1the purpose ol expressing an opinion on compliance
lor cach major federal program and to Lest and report on internal control over compliance
accordance with the Unilorm Guidance, but not for (he purpose of” expressing an nplniun on the
eifectiveness of inlemal control over Lumpllance Accordingly. we do not express an opinion on
the effecuvenesy ol the City of Petal, Mississippt’s inlernal control over complianee

A deficiency in internal conirol over complianee exisis when the design or operation of a control
over compliance docs not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
(heir assigned functions, 1o prevent, or delect and correct, noncomplhance with a type ol
compliance requirement of'a Fuleral program on a Iumly basis. A material weakness m imernal
control over lic isad or of ies, in intemal control over
compliance, such thal there is a reasonable possibility that matenal noncompliance with a 1ype o'
compliance requirement ol'a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
atimely basis A sigaificant deficiency in internal control over complience 1s a deliciency, or a
comhinalion of deficiencics, in inlernal control over compliance wilh a (ype ol compliance
requirement of a fxlerat program 1hat 1s less severe (han & malerial weakness in internal control
over compliance, yel important enough 1o meril attention by those charged with governance

Our consideralion of internal control vver compliance was for the Tunited purpose deseribed in
the first paragraph ol (his scclion and was nol designed (o ldunu Iy 4II (IelluuluLs in internat
control over compliance that mighl be material or We did
not identify any delicicneies in internal control over compliance (hat we consider 10 be malerial
weaknesses 1lowever, malerial weaknesses may exist that have not been identificd

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the seope of
our testing of intermal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requiraments of the Unifom Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suilable for any other

purpose
Holt & Apociates, PLLC
Laurel, MS

June 29, 2018
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9 Auditee qualificd as low-risk auditee? No
Hovrs ASSOCIATES, PLLC
YR P AN Seclion II: Financial § Findings

W David Dill. CPPA IL L Toh, CPA o P -

Tulie M. Uher, CPA Tounder (1915-1997) 2017-1: Significant Beficiency

Kan M Rlackledee, CPA

a e Cutena “The City’s computer system should ealeulate wate bills acewrawety
EPENDENT AUDITOR 'S REPORT
TN NTA Condition: Waler bills with over 50,000 gallons ol usage were not accurately caleutated

ON COMPLIANCE WIITT STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Cause  The Cily’s computer system was nut aceurately caleulaling (he bills once usage went over

Ionorable Mayor, Members of the 50,000 gallons.

ity Counctl, €' ager and Cily Clerk N ; i

f,'gf,}’,‘fgﬂ,l &‘,ﬁm‘::;sq it Gy il Jilfect: Customers with usage over 50,000 gallons were under billed.
i i m i aeliviti Recommendation:  The Cily should work with the computer company o have (he bills accurately

vi g ci ¢ clivitics, b aclivitics . A B i
::3 I\;\;a:::;:{ Il}-:;f“;ﬁm‘:w it o fund i e of the (-'}l'y o? ‘]\,:ﬂl:]‘ caleulated and the City should test the calculations on a random basis and specilically after a rate
= N 3

Missiustpi as of i (e the year ended September 30, 3017, aid have i) our seport iercon change

datéd Juoe 29, 2018 We conductial eur sudit in sccanfasce with pencrally sceceptal suditing

stanitands and the sundands applicable. o financiul audits contained i Coverimmeni Aseliting

Sivichiiraly

As required by the stale legal compliance audit program preseribed by the Office of the Stale
Auditor, we have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and . . - .
n However, gk I anri)pinm on ; pwilh stale laws and repulations was T'he results ol our tests did not disclose any Iindings and guestioned costs refaied 1o the federal awards.
L 2 S t
nol an ahjective of our audil and, accordiigly, we do not express such an opinion

Fhe results of those procedures performed to test compliance with certain other state laws and
reyulations and our audit of the (nanciat statements disclosed the following immaterial inslance
ol nancompliance with other state laws and regulations. Our findings and recommendation and
your responsce are as follows:

Condition: The City’s expenditdies exceeded amounts budgeted. According 1o Seclion 21-35-
13, Miss. Codde Ann. (1972), expenditures shall not exeeed budget estimaies, measured al the
lowes( level adopted i the budget, except for capital outlay, clection expenses, and payment of’
cmergency warranls

o We tecommend the City lake grealer care in reviewing operalions and
Himg 1 bl pet aw ci reguire.

Response: The city will make sure all expenditures arc entered belore making the final
amendinents (o the budgct

70
67
Finding #2
Comlitsgs The €ity i 0ol mes depesitary requireinents thal must be centified by the State Cily of Petal, MS
Troasuser. According to Scctiop 27-1031, Miss. Ciale Ann. (1972), depositories must be Ysted Audiee’s Conective Actron Plan
it the cellateralimtion report for the State ‘I reasarer.
Recommengation: We recommend the City take greater care 1n reviewing bank accounts (o Asroquirad by 2CER 200, Subpan 1. Sectinn 311(c) of Uniform Guidance, fhe ity of Petal has
determinie that i accownts arc listed on the collateralization report. jeepared and ]uwhy submits e foliowinyg comective sction plan fur the findirgs included in the
Schaalule of Findings miad Questione Cost (s the year endid Septomber 70, 4117

Baspones, The City will take preater care in making sure (hat all accounts are listed on the
c.nll_.llu-al report by carefully lisling all accounts and reviewing belore sending 10 bank for Findine Corrective Action Delails
verifiution.
Fhis st is diezulal solely for the information and usc of the management, ity oflicials and 2007-1 4, Name o conlact person responsible for corrective action
fedemal awarding agensics and is not intended 1o be and should not be used by miytine other that Name: 11 )
thess specified panies cul g g

Phone Number: 601-345-1776
Holt & Apsociatey, PLLC
1aurel, MS b. Comrective Action Planned,
June 29, 2018 We will work to make surc the billings are correet when

there is a luture rate change

¢ Anlicipated Completion Date:
Immediately
n
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ity of Petal, MS
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosls
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Financial Slalements:
1. Type of auditor s 1epoit issued thmodified

2 Inemal control over financial reporting:

a Maleral weakness(es) identified? No
b Signilicant deficiency(ies) identilied” Yos
3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards:

4. Inlemal control over major proprams

a Malerial weakness(esy identified? No

b Sigmfican deficiency(ics) identified? None reported
5 Type ol auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodifict
6 Any audit findings disclosed that are required (o be reported m No

accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

7 Kentilication of major programs:

CEDA Numnbers Name of Eederal Program or Cluster

Nutrition Clusler
97.036 Disasler Grants-Public Assislance

B, Dollar (hreshokl used to hstinguish between type A and (ype B $750,000
prograns:
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